

PRECIDIAN ETFs TRUST

STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Dated September 20, 2024

This Statement of Additional Information ("SAI") is not a prospectus. It should be read in conjunction with and is incorporated by reference into the prospectus dated September 20, 2024 ("Prospectus") for the Precidian ETFs Trust ("Trust"), relating to the series identified in the table below (each, a "Series" and together, the "Series"), as it may be revised from time to time.

A copy of the Prospectus relating to the Series and, when available, the Series Annual Report and Semi-Annual Report may be obtained without charge by writing to the Trust, at 8730 Stony Point Parkway, Suite 205, Richmond, VA 23235, by calling 1-844-954-5333, or by visiting the Trust's website at www.adrhedged.com.

Series Name	Ticker Symbol	Exchange		
Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV ADRhedged TM	BUDH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
AstraZeneca PLC ADRhedged™	AZNH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
Banco Santander S.A. ADRhedged™	SANH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
BP p.l.c. ADRhedged TM	ВРН	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
British American Tobacco p.l.c. ADRhedged™	BTIH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
Diageo plc ADRhedged TM	DEOH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
GSK plc ADRhedged TM	GSKH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
HSBC Holdings plc ADRhedged™	HSBH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. ADRhedged™	MUFH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
Novartis AG ADRhedged™	NVSH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
Novo Nordisk A/S (B Shares) ADRhedged TM	NVOH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
Shell plc ADRhedged TM	SHEH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
Sanofi ADRhedged TM	SNYH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
SAP SE ADRhedged TM	SAPH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
TotalEnergies SE ADRhedged™	TTEH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
Toyota Motor Corporation ADRhedged TM	TMH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		
Vodafone Group Plc ADRhedged TM	VODH	Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc.		

Capitalized terms used but not defined herein have the same meaning as in the Prospectus, unless otherwise noted.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Pag
GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE TRUST AND THE SERIES	1
EXCHANGE LISTING AND TRADING	1
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES	1
INVESTMENT STRATEGIES AND RISKS	3
MANAGEMENT	10
CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF SECURITIES	13
MANAGEMENT SERVICES	13
OTHER SERVICE PROVIDERS	15
PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS AND BROKERAGE	17
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONCERNING SHARES	18
BOOK ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM	18
PURCHASE AND REDEMPTION OF CREATION SHARES	19
CONTINUOUS OFFERING	19
DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE	24
DISTRIBUTIONS	25
U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAXES	25
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	28
OTHER INFORMATION	28
EXHIBIT A – TRUST'S PROXY VOTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES	29
EXHIBIT B – MANAGER'S PROXY VOTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES	31
EXHIBIT C – TRUST'S NOMINATING AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE CHARTER	28

No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained in this SAI and the Prospectus and, if given or made, such information or representations may not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Trust.

PrecidianSM is a service mark of Precidian Funds, LLC (the "Manager").

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE TRUST AND THE SERIES

The Trust was organized as a Delaware statutory trust on August 27, 2010 as NEXT ETFs Trust and is authorized to have multiple segregated series or portfolios. The name of the Trust was changed on May 16, 2011 to Precidian ETFs Trust. The Trust is an open-end, management investment company registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended ("1940 Act"). The Trust currently consists of 17 investment portfolios. This SAI addresses the following investment portfolios of the Trust: Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV ADRhedgedTM, AstraZeneca PLC ADRhedgedTM, Banco Santander S.A. ADRhedgedTM, BP p.l.c. ADRhedgedTM, British American Tobacco p.l.c. ADRhedgedTM, Diageo plc ADRhedgedTM, GSK plc ADRhedgedTM, HSBC Holdings plc ADRhedgedTM, Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. ADRhedgedTM, Novartis AG ADRhedgedTM, Novo Nordisk A/S (B Shares) ADRhedgedTM, Shell plc ADRhedgedTM, Sanofi ADRhedgedTM, SAP SE ADRhedgedTM, TotalEnergies SE ADRhedgedTM, Toyota Motor Corporation ADRhedgedTM, and Vodafone Group Plc ADRhedgedTM.

Other portfolios may be added to the Trust in the future. The shares of the Series are referred to herein as "Series Shares" or "Shares." Beneficial owners of Shares are referred to herein as "Shareholders".

The Series are managed by the Manager. The Manager has been registered as an investment manager with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") since 2024.

The Series offer and issue Shares at net asset value ("NAV") only in aggregations of a specified number of Shares (each, a "Creation Unit"), generally in exchange for a basket of securities or instruments (including any portion of such securities or instruments for which cash may be substituted) ("Deposit Securities"), together with the deposit of a specified cash payment ("Cash Component") consisting of the pro rata amount of the net amount of cash in the Settlement Account and the value of the Currency Hedge Contract (defined below) at the time of creation. Series Shares trade on the Cboe BZX Exchange, Inc. (the "Exchange") at market prices that may be below, at, or above NAV. Shares are redeemable only in Creation Units and, generally, in exchange for Deposit Securities and/or a Cash Component.

Transaction fees for cash creations or redemptions may be higher than the transaction fees associated with in-kind creations or redemptions. In all cases, conditions and fees will be limited in accordance with the requirements of SEC rules and regulations applicable to management investment companies offering redeemable securities.

EXCHANGE LISTING AND TRADING

Shares of the Series are listed for trading and trade throughout the day on the Exchange. There can be no assurance that the requirements of the Exchange necessary for the Series to maintain the listing of their Shares will continue to be met. The Exchange will consider the suspension of trading and delisting of the Shares of a Series from listing if: (i) following the initial 12-month period beginning at the commencement of trading of the Series, there are fewer than 50 beneficial owners of the Shares of the Series; or (ii) such other event shall occur or condition exist that, in the opinion of the Exchange, makes further trading on the Exchange inadvisable. The Exchange will remove the Shares of a Series from listing and trading upon termination of such Series.

The Series continued listing on the Exchange or another stock exchange or market system is a condition of the exemptive relief the Series obtained from the SEC to operate as exchange-traded funds ("ETFs"). A Series failure to be so listed would result in the termination of the Series.

As in the case of other stocks traded on the Exchange, brokers' commissions on transactions will be based on negotiated commission rates at customary levels.

The Trust reserves the right to adjust the price levels of the Shares in the future to maintain convenient trading ranges for investors. Any adjustments would be accomplished through stock splits or reverse stock splits, which would have no effect on the net assets of the Series.

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Investment Objective

The investment objective of each Series is to provide investment results that generally correspond, before fees and expenses, to the total return of the ordinary shares of the non-U.S. company, as designated in such Series name (each, an "Underlying Issuer," and together, the "Underlying Issuers"), in its local market as traded in its local currency ("Local Currency"). There can be no assurance that a Series objective will be achieved.

Each Series investment objective is not fundamental and therefore each Series investment objective may be changed by the Board of Trustees of the Trust without Shareholder approval upon sixty (60) days' written notice to Shareholders. Unless otherwise noted, all policies of the Series may be changed without Shareholder approval, provided such change does not give the Trustees or related parties the power to vary the investments of a Series. Any of the Series investment policies not specifically designated as fundamental may be changed

without Shareholder approval. Additional information about the Series, their policies, and the investment instruments they may hold, is provided below.

The Series share prices will fluctuate with market and economic conditions. The Series should not be relied upon as a complete investment program.

Investment Restrictions

The investment restrictions set forth below have been adopted by the Board of Trustees of the Trust ("Board") as fundamental policies that cannot be changed with respect to a Series without the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority (as defined in the 1940 Act) of the outstanding voting securities of the Series. The investment objective of the Series and all other investment policies or practices of the Series are considered by the Trust not to be fundamental and accordingly may be changed without Shareholder approval, provided such change does not give the Trustees or related parties the power to vary the investments of a Series. For purposes of the 1940 Act, a "majority of the outstanding voting securities" means the lesser of the vote of: (i) 67% or more of the Shares of a Series present at a meeting, if the holders of more than 50% of the outstanding Shares of the Series are present or represented by proxy; or (ii) more than 50% of the Shares of a Series.

As a matter of fundamental policy:

- A. Each Series may not borrow money, except as permitted under the 1940 Act, and as interpreted or modified by regulatory authority having jurisdiction.
- B. Each Series may not make loans to others, except as permitted under the 1940 Act, and as interpreted or modified by regulatory authority having jurisdiction.
- C. Each Series may not underwrite securities issued by others, except to the extent that the sale of portfolio securities by the Series may be deemed to be an underwriting under the federal securities laws.
- D. Each Series may not purchase or sell real estate except as permitted under the 1940 Act, and as interpreted or modified by regulatory authority having jurisdiction.
- E. Each Series may not purchase or sell physical commodities except to the extent permitted by the 1940 Act and any other governing statute, and by the rules thereunder, and by the SEC or other regulatory agency with authority over the Series.
- F. Each Series may not issue any senior securities to others, except as permitted under the 1940 Act, and as interpreted or modified by regulatory authority having jurisdiction.
- G. Each Series may not invest more than 25% of the value of its net assets in the securities of one or more issuers conducting their principal business activities in the same industry or group of industries, except that each Series will be concentrated in the industry to which its Underlying Issuer is assigned (i.e., hold more than 25% of its total assets in investments that provide exposure to the industry to which the Underlying Issuer is assigned). The limitation against industry concentration does not apply to investments in securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government, its agencies or instrumentalities, or to shares of investment companies; however, each Series will not invest more than 25% of its net assets in any investment company that so concentrates. In complying with this restriction, the Series will not consider a bank-issued guaranty or financial guaranty insurance as a separate security.

Except with respect to borrowing, if a percentage or rating restriction on an investment or use of assets set forth herein or in the Prospectus is adhered to at the time a transaction is effected, later changes in such percentages or restrictions resulting from any cause other than actions by the Series will not be considered a violation. Currently, subject to modification to conform to the 1940 Act as interpreted or modified, the Series are permitted, consistent with the 1940 Act, to borrow, and pledge its shares to secure such borrowing, provided, that immediately thereafter there is asset coverage of at least 300% for all borrowings by a Series from a bank. If borrowings exceed this 300% asset coverage requirement by reason of a decline in net assets of a Series, the Series will reduce its borrowings within three days (not including Sundays and holidays) to the extent necessary to comply with the 300% asset coverage requirement. The 1940 Act also permits a Series to borrow for temporary purposes only in an amount not exceeding 5% of the value of the Series total assets at the time when the loan is made. A loan shall be presumed to be for temporary purposes if it is repaid within 60 days and is not extended or renewed. To the extent outstanding borrowings of a Series exceed 5% of the value of the total assets of the Series, the Series will not make additional purchases of securities – the foregoing shall not be construed to prevent a Series from settling portfolio transactions or satisfying shareholder redemptions orders.

Currently, with respect to senior securities, the 1940 Act and regulatory interpretations of relevant provisions of the 1940 Act establish the following general limits, subject to modification to conform to the 1940 Act as interpreted or modified: Open-end registered investment companies such as the Series are not permitted to issue any class of senior security or to sell any senior security of which they

are the issuers. The Trust is, however, permitted to issue separate series of shares and to divide those series into separate classes. Each Series currently offers one class of shares. The Series have no intention of issuing senior securities, except that the Trust has issued its shares in separate series and may divide those series into classes of shares. Collateral arrangements with respect to forward contracts, futures contracts or options, including deposits of initial and variation margin, are not considered to be the issuance of a senior security for purposes of this restriction.

With respect to the Series Fundamental Policy G as described above, the Series will consider, to the extent practicable and consistent with applicable rules, regulations of the SEC and applicable guidance from the staff of the SEC, investments in underlying investment companies when determining its compliance with the policy.

Each Series is classified as non-diversified within the meaning of the 1940 Act and therefore may invest a greater percentage of its assets in a particular issuer than a diversified fund.

INVESTMENT STRATEGIES AND RISKS

A discussion of the risks associated with an investment in the Series is contained in the Series Prospectus under the headings "Principal Risks of Investing in the Series" and "Additional Description of the Risks of the Series." The discussion below supplements, and should be read in conjunction with, such sections of the Series Prospectus.

General

The Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV ADRhedgedTM, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV.

The AstraZeneca PLC ADRhedgedTM, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of AstraZeneca PLC.

The Banco Santander S.A. ADRhedgedTM, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of Banco Santander S.A.

The BP p.l.c. ADRhedged™, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of BP p.l.c.

The British American Tobacco p.l.c. ADRhedgedTM, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of British American Tobacco p.l.c.

The Diageo plc ADRhedgedTM, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of Diageo plc.

The GSK plc ADRhedgedTM, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of GSK plc.

The HSBC Holdings plc ADRhedged™, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of HSBC Holdings plc.

The Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. ADRhedgedTM, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc.

The Novartis AG ADRhedgedTM, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of Novartis AG.

The Novo Nordisk A/S (B Shares) ADRhedgedTM, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of Novo Nordisk A/S (B Shares).

The Shell plc ADRhedged™, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of Shell plc.

The Sanofi ADRhedgedTM, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of Sanofi.

The SAP SE ADRhedgedTM, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of SAP S.E.

The TotalEnergies SE ADRhedgedTM, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of TotalEnergies SE

The Toyota Motor Corporation ADRhedged™, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of Toyota Motor Corporation.

The Vodafone Group Plc ADRhedgedTM, under normal circumstances, invests at least 95% of its net assets in ADRs of Vodafone Group Plc.

Each Series invests in the ADRs of the Underlying Issuer (the "Portfolio Securities") and a currency swap (the "Currency Hedge Contract") designed to hedge against fluctuations in the exchange rate between the U.S. dollar and the Local Currency.

The Series do not seek to replicate the performance of a specified index. Investment in the Series should be made with an understanding that the value of a Series investments may fluctuate in accordance with changes in the financial condition of the issuer of the Portfolio Securities, the value of ADRs or common stocks generally and other factors.

Each Series intends to qualify as a "grantor trust" under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ("Code"). If the Series are at all times operated in accordance with the documents establishing the Series and certain requirements of U.S. federal income tax law are met, and if the Series in fact qualify and continue to qualify as a grantor trust for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the Series will not be taxed as a corporation, but rather, they will be disregarded for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Depositary Receipts

ADRs are receipts, typically issued by an American bank or trust issuer, which evidence ownership of underlying securities issued by a non-U.S. issuer. ADRs are not necessarily denominated in the same currency as their underlying securities. Generally, ADRs, issued in registered form, are designed for use in the U.S. securities markets.

The Series will not invest in any unlisted ADR or any ADR that the Manager deems illiquid at the time of purchase or for which pricing information is not readily available. The ADRs the Series invest in are (1) sponsored ADRs, (2) registered with the SEC on Form F-6 and (3) Level 2 or 3 ADRs, all of which are listed on a national securities exchange. ADRs involve risks not experienced when investing directly in the equity securities of an issuer. Changes in foreign currency exchange rates affect the value of ADRs and, therefore, may affect the value of a Series portfolio, although the Series enters into the Currency Hedge Contract to seek to minimize the impact of fluctuations in the foreign currency exchange rate. In addition, although the ADRs in which the Series invest will be listed on major U.S. exchanges, there can be no assurance that a market for these securities will be made or maintained or that any such market will be or remain liquid. There is also no guarantee that a financial institution will continue to sponsor a particular ADR. As a result, the Series may have difficulty selling securities, or selling them quickly and efficiently at the prices at which they have been valued.

The prices of equity securities, including the prices of Series Shares and ADRs, change in response to many factors, including the historical and prospective earnings of the issuer, the value of its assets, general economic conditions, interest rates, investor perceptions and market liquidity. These factors include events impacting a single issuer, as well as political, market and economic developments that affect specific market segments and the market as a whole.

Investing in the ADRs of a foreign company involve special risks and considerations not typically associated with investing in U.S. issuers. Non-U.S. issuers may be subject to less governmental regulation than U.S. issuers. Moreover, individual non-U.S. economies may differ favorably or unfavorably from the U.S. economy in such respects as growth of gross domestic product, rate of inflation, capital reinvestment, resource self-sufficiency and balance of payment positions.

Currency Hedge Contract

Although ADRs are U.S. dollar denominated and traded on U.S. exchanges, ADRs are still subject to currency risk because changes in foreign currency exchange rates affect their value. The Currency Hedge Contract is designed to minimize the impact of fluctuations in the exchange rate between the U.S. dollar and the Local Currency. The Currency Hedge Contract is with a counterparty as principal and/or agent for other parties. The Currency Hedge Contract will provide that the notional amount will vary day to day based upon the value of the Portfolio Securities on that day as expressed in the Local Currency. The Currency Hedge Contract has been structured to enable the Series to meet grantor trust status under the Code.

A currency swap, such as the Currency Hedge Contract, is an agreement between two parties to exchange periodic cash flows on a notional amount of two currencies based on the relative value differential between them. For example, a currency swap may involve the exchange of payments in a non-U.S. currency for payments in U.S. dollars. The Currency Hedge Contract will be at-the-money at execution (*i.e.*, at the creation of the Series), settle daily at 11:00 am Eastern Time (the "Settlement Time"), and therefore it will again be at-the-money immediately after the Settlement Time. At-the-money means neither the Series nor the counterparty of the Currency Hedge Contract (the "Counterparty") is due any amounts under the Swap. The notional amount of the Currency Hedge Contract will adjust automatically pursuant to its terms to cover all the ADRs held by the Series at any given time, including ADRs deposited into the Series subsequent to the Series creation. The Counterparty on the Currency Hedge Contract cannot be changed by the Series unless there is a default, including a decline in the credit quality of the Counterparty, under the Currency Hedge Contract.

Each Series will also maintain a settlement account (the "Settlement Account") primarily for the purpose of the Currency Hedge Contract's daily settlement. Any dividends received in respect of the ADRs will also be deposited into the Settlement Account. The Settlement Account funds will be temporarily reinvested, pending distributions to Shareholders discussed below in the "DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS" section (each a "Distribution Date"), only in U.S. government securities, bank deposits, bankers' acceptances, highly rated commercial paper, repurchase agreements relating to high-quality debt instruments, and money market funds (the "Permitted Investments"). Such Permitted Investments that have a term will mature before the applicable Distribution Date.

The Currency Hedge Contract will settle in cash each day at the Settlement Time. For example, if money is owed to the Series at the Settlement Time, the Counterparty will deposit such amount into the Settlement Account. Conversely, if money is owed to the Counterparty at the Settlement Time, the amount will be withdrawn from the Settlement Account and transferred to the Counterparty. To the extent there is not enough cash in the Settlement Account to satisfy the Series obligation to the Counterparty at the Settlement Time, ADRs of the Series will be sold to generate cash to pay the Counterparty.

Comprehensive Swaps Regulation. The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the "Dodd-Frank Act") and related regulatory developments have imposed comprehensive regulatory requirements on swaps and swap market participants. The regulatory framework includes: (1) registration and regulation of swap dealers and major swap participants; (2) requiring central clearing and execution of standardized swaps; (3) imposing margin requirements on swap transactions; (4) regulating and monitoring swap transactions through position limits and large trader reporting requirements; and (5) imposing record keeping and centralized and public reporting requirements, on an anonymous basis, for most swaps. The Commodity Futures Trading Commission ("CFTC") is responsible for the regulation of most swaps. The SEC has jurisdiction over a small segment of the market referred to as "security-based swaps," which includes swaps on single securities or credits, or narrow-based indices of securities or credits.

Uncleared swaps. In an uncleared swap, such as the Currency Hedge Contract, the swap counterparty is typically a brokerage firm, bank or other financial institution. The Series customarily enters into uncleared swaps based on the standard terms and conditions of an International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agreement. ISDA is a voluntary industry association of participants in the over-the-counter derivatives markets that has developed standardized contracts used by such participants that have agreed to be bound by such standardized contracts.

In the event that one party to a swap transaction defaults and the transaction is terminated prior to its scheduled termination date, one of the parties may be required to make an early termination payment to the other. An early termination payment may be payable by either the defaulting or non-defaulting party, depending upon which of them is "in-the-money" with respect to the swap at the time of its termination. Early termination payments may be calculated in various ways, but are intended to approximate the amount the "in-the-money" party would have to pay to replace the swap as of the date of its termination.

Risks of swaps generally and the Currency Hedge Contract. The use of swap transactions is a highly specialized activity, which involves investment techniques and risks different from those associated with ordinary portfolio securities transactions. While the Currency Hedge Contract is designed to minimize the impact of currency fluctuations on Series returns, it does not necessarily eliminate the Series exposure to the Local Currency. Currency hedges are sometimes subject to imperfect matching between the Currency Hedge Contract and the currencies that the contract intends to hedge, and there can be no assurance that the Currency Hedge Contract will be effective. The return of the Currency Hedge Contract will not perfectly offset the actual fluctuations between the Local Currency and the U.S. dollar. It is possible that a degree of currency exposure may remain even at the time the Currency Hedge Contract is implemented. The Series may not be able to structure the Currency Hedge Contract as anticipated or the Currency Hedge Contract may not successfully reduce the currency risk from the Portfolio Securities.

Because currency control is of great importance to the issuing governments and influences economic planning and policy, purchases and sales of currency and related instruments can be negatively affected by government exchange controls, blockages, and

manipulations or exchange restrictions imposed by governments. These actions could result in losses to the Series if they are unable to deliver or receive a specified currency or funds in settlement of obligations, including any derivative transaction obligations. These actions could also have an adverse effect on the Series currency transactions or cause the Series hedging positions to be rendered useless. The Currency Hedge Contract is subject to market risk; risk of default by the other party to the transaction, known as "counterparty risk;" and risk of imperfect correlation between profit or loss on the Currency Hedge Contract and the underlying currency exchange rate. To the extent that the Series have only one or a few counterparties, the Series will be exposed to greater counterparty risk. Moreover, the Series may be unable to enter into the Currency Hedge Contract on favorable terms, potentially preventing the Series from achieving its investment objective. The Currency Hedge Contract does not involve the delivery of the underlying currencies. Accordingly, the risk of loss with respect to swaps generally is limited to the net amount of payments that a Series is contractually obligated to make, or in the case of the other party to a swap defaulting, the net amount of payments that a Series is contractually entitled to receive.

The risk of loss to the Series for swap transactions that are entered into on a net basis depends on which party is obligated to pay the net amount to the other party. If the counterparty is obligated to pay the net amount to a Series, the risk of loss to the Series is loss of the entire amount that the Series is entitled to receive. If the Series is obligated to pay the net amount, the Series risk of loss is generally limited to that net amount. In addition, a Series risk of loss also includes any margin at risk in the event of default by the counterparty, plus any transaction costs.

Because bilateral swap agreements are structured as two-party contracts and may have terms of greater than seven days, these swaps may be considered to be illiquid and, therefore, subject to the Series limitation on investments in illiquid securities. If a swap transaction is particularly large or if the relevant market is illiquid, the Series may not be able to establish or liquidate a position at an advantageous time or price, which may result in significant losses. Participants in the swap markets are not required to make continuous markets in the swap contracts they trade. Participants could refuse to quote prices for swap contracts or quote prices with an unusually wide spread between the price at which they are prepared to buy and the price at which they are prepared to sell. Some swap agreements entail complex terms and may require a greater degree of subjectivity in their valuation. However, the swap markets have grown substantially in recent years, with a large number of financial institutions acting both as principals and agents, utilizing standardized swap documentation. As a result, the swap markets have become increasingly liquid. The Manager, under the supervision of the Board, is responsible for determining and monitoring the liquidity of the Currency Hedge Contract.

Rules adopted under the Dodd-Frank Act require centralized reporting of detailed information about many swaps. This information is available to regulators and also, to a more limited extent and on an anonymous basis, to the public. Reporting of swap data is intended to result in greater market transparency. This may be beneficial to funds that use swaps in their trading strategies. However, public reporting imposes additional recordkeeping burdens on these funds, and the safeguards established to protect anonymity are not yet tested and may not provide protection of funds' identities as intended.

It is possible that developments in the swap markets and/or the laws relating to swap agreements, including potential government regulation, could adversely affect the Series ability to benefit from using the Currency Hedge Contract, or could have adverse tax consequences. For more information about potentially changing regulation, see "Developing government regulation of derivatives" below.

Risks of uncleared swaps. Uncleared swaps are typically executed bilaterally with a swap dealer rather than traded on exchanges. As a result, swap participants may not be as protected as participants on organized exchanges. Performance of a swap agreement is the responsibility only of the swap counterparty and not of any exchange or clearinghouse. As a result, the Series are subject to the risk that a counterparty will be unable or will refuse to perform under such agreement, including because of the counterparty's bankruptcy or insolvency. The Series risk the loss of the accrued but unpaid amounts under a swap agreement, which could be substantial, in the event of a default, insolvency or bankruptcy by a swap counterparty. In such an event, a Series will have contractual remedies pursuant to the swap agreements, but bankruptcy and insolvency laws could affect the Series rights as a creditor. If the counterparty's creditworthiness declines, the value of a swap agreement would likely decline, potentially resulting in losses. In unusual or extreme market conditions, a counterparty's creditworthiness and ability to perform may deteriorate rapidly, and the availability of suitable replacement counterparties may become limited.

Developing government regulation of derivatives. The regulation of swaps, as well as other derivatives, is a rapidly changing area of law and is subject to modification by government and judicial action. In addition, the SEC, CFTC and the exchanges are authorized to take extraordinary actions in the event of a market emergency, including, for example, the implementation or reduction of speculative position limits, the implementation of higher margin requirements, the establishment of daily price limits and the suspension of trading.

Rule 18f-4 under the 1940 Act governs the Series use of derivative instruments and certain other transactions that create future payment and/or delivery obligations by the Series. Rule 18f-4 permits the Series to enter into Derivatives Transactions (as defined below),

such as the Currency Hedge Contracts, and certain other transactions notwithstanding the restrictions on the issuance of "senior securities" under Section 18 of the 1940 Act. Section 18 of the 1940 Act, among other things, prohibits open-end funds, including the Series, from issuing or selling any "senior security," other than borrowing from a bank (subject to a requirement to maintain 300% "asset coverage"). In connection with the adoption of Rule 18f-4, the SEC eliminated the asset segregation framework arising from prior SEC guidance for covering Derivatives Transactions and certain financial instruments.

Under Rule 18f-4, "Derivatives Transactions" include the following: (i) any swap, security-based swap (including a contract for differences), futures contract, forward contract, option (excluding purchased options), any combination of the foregoing, or any similar instrument, under which a Series is or may be required to make any payment or delivery of cash or other assets during the life of the instrument or at maturity or early termination, whether as margin or settlement payment or otherwise; (ii) any short sale borrowing; (iii) reverse repurchase agreements and similar financing transactions, if the Series elects to treat these transactions as Derivatives Transactions under Rule 18f-4; and (iv) when-issued or forward-settling securities (e.g., firm and standby commitments, including to-be-announced ("TBA") commitments, and dollar rolls) and non-standard settlement cycle securities, unless the Series intends to physically settle the transaction and the transaction will settle within 35 days of its trade date.

Unless a Series is relying on the Limited Derivatives User Exception (as defined below), the Series must comply with Rule 18f-4 with respect to its Derivatives Transactions. Rule 18f-4, among other things, requires the Series to (i) appoint a Derivatives Risk Manager, (ii) maintain a Derivatives Risk Management Program designed to identify, assess, and reasonably manage the risks associated with Derivatives Transactions; (iii) comply with certain value-at-risk (VaR)-based leverage limits (VaR is an estimate of an instrument's or portfolio's potential losses over a given time horizon and at a specified confidence level); and (iv) comply with certain Board reporting and recordkeeping requirements.

Rule 18f-4 provides an exception from the requirements to appoint a Derivatives Risk Manager, adopt a Derivatives Risk Management Program, comply with certain VaR-based leverage limits, and comply with certain Board oversight and reporting requirements if a Series "derivatives exposure" (as defined in Rule 18f-4) is limited to 10% of its net assets (as calculated in accordance with Rule 18f-4) and the Series adopts and implements written policies and procedures reasonably designed to manage its derivatives risks (the "Limited Derivatives User Exception").

Pursuant to Rule 18f-4, if a Series enters into reverse repurchase agreements or similar financing transactions, the Series will (i) aggregate the amount of indebtedness associated with all of its reverse repurchase agreements or similar financing transactions with the amount of any other "senior securities" representing indebtedness (e.g., bank borrowings, if applicable) when calculating the Series asset coverage ratio or (ii) treat all such transactions as Derivatives Transactions.

These and other new rules and regulations could, among other things, further restrict the Series ability to engage in, or increase the cost to a Series of, derivatives transactions, for example, by making some types of derivatives no longer available to the Series, increasing margin or capital requirements, or otherwise limiting liquidity or increasing transaction costs. The implementation of the clearing requirement for certain swaps has increased the costs of derivatives transactions for a Series, since a Series has to pay fees to its clearing members and are typically required to post more margin for cleared derivatives than they have historically posted for bilateral derivatives. The costs of derivatives transactions may increase further as clearing members raise their fees to cover the costs of additional capital requirements and other regulatory changes applicable to the clearing members. Certain aspects of these regulations are still being implemented, so their potential impact on the Series and the financial system are not yet known. While the regulations and central clearing of some derivatives transactions are designed to reduce systemic risk (i.e., the risk that the interdependence of large derivatives dealers could cause them to suffer liquidity, solvency or other challenges simultaneously), there is no assurance that the mechanisms imposed under the regulations will achieve that result, and in the meantime, as noted above, central clearing, minimum margin requirements and related requirements expose the Series to new kinds of risks and costs.

Regulatory Margin Risk. In recent years, regulators across the globe, including the CFTC and the U.S. banking regulators, have adopted margin requirements applicable to uncleared swaps. While the Series are not directly subject to these requirements, where the Series counterparties are subject to the requirements, uncleared swaps between a Series and those counterparties are required to be marked-to-market on a daily basis, and collateral is required to be exchanged to account for any changes in the value of such swaps. The rules impose a number of requirements as to these exchanges of margin, including as to the timing of transfers, the type of collateral (and valuations for such collateral) and other matters that may be different than what the Series would agree with its counterparty in the absence of such regulation. In all events, where a Series is required to post collateral to its swap counterparty, such collateral will be posted to an independent bank custodian, where access to the collateral by the swap counterparty will generally not be permitted unless the Series is in default on its obligations to the swap counterparty.

In addition to the variation margin requirements, regulators have adopted "initial" margin requirements applicable to uncleared swaps. Where applicable, these rules require parties to an uncleared swap to post, to a custodian that is independent from the parties to the swap, collateral (in addition to any "variation margin" collateral noted above) in an amount that is either (i) specified in a schedule in the rules or (ii) calculated by the regulated party in accordance with a model that has been approved by that party's regulator(s). At this time, the initial margin rules do not apply to the Series swap trading relationships. However, the rules are being implemented on a phased basis, and in the near future, the rules may apply to the Series. In the event that the rules apply, they would impose significant costs on the Series ability to engage in uncleared swaps and, as such, could adversely affect the Manager's ability to manage the Series, may impair the Series ability to achieve their investment objective and/or may result in reduced returns to the Series investors.

Illiquid Securities

The Series may invest up to an aggregate amount of 15% of its net assets in illiquid securities. Illiquid securities include securities subject to contractual or other restrictions on resale and other instruments that lack readily available markets.

Concentration

Because a Series only invests in ADRs of the Underlying Issuer and the Currency Hedge Contract, the Series may be adversely affected by the performance of the Underlying Issuer, subject to increased price volatility and more susceptible to adverse economic, market, political or regulatory occurrences affecting the industry in which the Underlying Issuer is located and the country in which the Underlying Issuer is located.

As of the date of this SAI, the Series concentrate their investments (i.e., invest 25% or more of their total assets) in the following industries:

Series	Industry
Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV ADRhedged TM	Consumer Staples / Food Beverage
AstraZeneca PLC ADRhedged TM	Health Care / Pharmaceutical
Banco Santander S.A. ADRhedged™	Financials / Banks
BP p.l.c. ADRhedged TM	Energy
British American Tobacco p.l.c. ADRhedged™	Consumer Staples / Tobacco
Diageo plc ADRhedged TM	Consumer Staples / Food Beverage Tobacco
GSK plc ADRhedged TM	Health Care / Pharmaceutical
HSBC Holdings plc ADRhedged™	Financials/Banks
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. ADRhedged™	Financials / Banks
Novartis AG ADRhedged TM	Health Care / Pharmaceutical and Biotechnology
Novo Nordisk A/S (B Shares) ADRhedged™	Health Care / Pharmaceutical
Shell plc ADRhedged™	Energy
Sanofi ADRhedged™	Health Care / Pharmaceutical
SAP SE ADRhedged™	Information Technology / Software and Services
TotalEnergies SE ADRhedged TM	Energy
Toyota Motor Corporation ADRhedged TM	Consumer Discretionary / Automobiles and Components
Vodafone Group Plc ADRhedged™	Communication Services / Telecommunication Services

Cyber-Security Risk

A Series, and its service providers, may be prone to operational and information security risks resulting from cyber-attacks. Cyber-attacks include, among other behaviors, stealing or corrupting data maintained online or digitally, denial of service attacks on websites, the unauthorized release of confidential information or various other forms of cyber security breaches. Cyber-attacks affecting a Series or the Manager, custodian, transfer agent, intermediaries and other third-party service providers may adversely impact the Series. For instance, cyber-attacks may interfere with the processing of Shareholder transactions, impact a Series ability to calculate NAV, cause the release of private Shareholder information or confidential business information, impede trading, subject the Series to regulatory fines or financial losses and/or cause reputational damage. A Series may also incur additional costs for cyber security risk management purposes. While a Series service providers have established business continuity plans, there are inherent limitations in such plans and systems, including the possibility that certain risks have not been identified. Furthermore, a Series cannot control the cyber-security plans and systems put in place by its service providers or any other third parties whose operations may affect the Series or its Shareholders. Similar types of cyber-security risks are also present for issuers or securities in which a Series may invest, which could result in material adverse consequences for such issuers and may cause the Series investment in such companies to lose value.

Exclusion of Manager from Commodity Pool Operator Definition

With respect to the Series, the Manager has claimed an exclusion from the definition of "commodity pool operator" ("CPO") under the Commodity Exchange Act ("CEA") and the rules of the CFTC and, therefore, is not subject to CFTC registration or regulation as a CPO. In addition, with respect to the Series, the Manager is relying upon a related exclusion from the definition of "commodity trading advisor" ("CTA") under the CEA and the rules of the CFTC.

The terms of the CPO exclusion require the Series, among other things, to adhere to certain limits on their investments in commodity futures, commodity options and swaps, which in turn include non-deliverable currency forward contracts. These limits do not apply to transactions used for bona fide hedging purposes, as defined by the CFTC. Because the Manager and the Series intend to comply with the terms of the CPO exclusion, the Series may, in the future, need to adjust their investment strategies, consistent with their investment objectives, to limit their investments in these types of instruments. The Series are not intended as a vehicle for trading in the commodity futures, commodity options, or swaps markets. The CFTC has neither reviewed nor approved the Manager's reliance on these exclusions, or the Series, their investment strategies or their prospectus.

Portfolio Turnover

The Series portfolio turnover may vary from year to year, as well as within a year. The overall reasonableness of brokerage commissions is evaluated by the Manager based upon its knowledge of available information as to the general level of commissions paid by other institutional investors for comparable services. In addition, the Series portfolio turnover level may adversely affect the ability of a Series to achieve its investment objective. "Portfolio Turnover Rate" is defined under the rules of the SEC as the lesser of the value of the securities purchased or securities sold, excluding all securities whose maturities at time of acquisition were one year or less, divided by the average monthly value of such securities owned during the year. In-kind subscriptions and redemptions are not included in the portfolio turnover calculations. Based on this definition, instruments with remaining maturities of less than one year are excluded from the calculation of the Portfolio Turnover Rate. Instruments excluded from the calculation of portfolio turnover generally would include future contracts, swap agreements and option contracts in which the Series invest since such contracts generally have a remaining maturity of less than one year. ETFs, such as the Series may incur very low levels of portfolio turnover (or none at all in accordance with the SEC methodology described above) because of the way in which they operate and the way shares are created in Creation Units. However, a low or zero Portfolio Turnover Rate should not be assumed to be indicative of the amount of gains that the Series may or may not distribute to Shareholders, as the instruments excluded from the calculation described above may have generated taxable gains upon their sale or maturity.

The Series are newly organized and has not had any operations as of the date of this SAI.

DISCLOSURE OF PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS

The Trust has adopted a Portfolio Holdings Policy ("Policy") designed to govern the disclosure of Series portfolio holdings and the use of material non-public information about Series holdings. The Policy applies to all officers, employees and agents of the Series, including the Manager. The Policy is designed to ensure that the disclosure of information about the Series portfolio holdings is consistent with applicable legal requirements and otherwise in the best interest of each Series.

As an ETF, information about the Series portfolio holdings is made available on a daily basis in accordance with the regulations of the Series Listing Exchange and other applicable SEC regulations, orders and no-action relief. This information is used in connection with the Creation and Redemption process and is disseminated on a daily basis through the facilities of the Listing Exchange, the National Securities Clearing Corporation ("NSCC") and/or third-party service providers.

Each Series will disclose on its website (www.adrhedged.com) at the start of each Business Day (as defined herein) the identities and quantities of the securities and other assets held by the Series that will form the basis of the Series calculation of its NAV on that Business Day. The portfolio holdings so disclosed will be based on information as of the close of business on the prior Business Day and/or trades that have been completed prior to the opening of business on that Business Day and that are expected to settle on the Business Day. Online disclosure of such holdings is publicly available at no charge.

Daily access to the Series portfolio holdings is permitted to personnel of the Manager, the Distributor and the Series administrator, custodian and accountant and other agents or service providers of the Trust who have need of such information in connection with the ordinary course of their respective duties to the Series. The Series Chief Compliance Officer ("CCO") may authorize disclosure of portfolio holdings.

The Series will disclose its complete portfolio holdings schedule in public filings with the SEC on a quarterly basis, based on the Series fiscal year, within sixty (60) days of the end of the quarter, and will provide that information to Shareholders, as required by federal securities laws and regulations thereunder.

No person is authorized to disclose the Series portfolio holdings or other investment positions except in accordance with the Policy. The Trust's Board reviews the implementation of the Policy on a periodic basis.

MANAGEMENT

<u>Trustees and Officers</u>. The Trust is governed by the Board, which is responsible for protecting the interests of Shareholders. The trustees are experienced businesspersons who meet throughout the year to oversee the Trust's activities, review contractual arrangements with companies that provide services to the Series and review performance. The names, addresses and ages of the trustees and officers of the Trust, together with information as to their principal occupations during the past five years, are listed below.

Each Trustee was nominated to serve on the Board of Trustees based on their particular experiences, qualifications, attributes and skills. Generally, the Trust believes that each Trustee is competent to serve because of their individual overall merits including: (i) experience; (ii) qualifications; (iii) attributes; and (iv) skills.

Ms. Mary Lou H. Ivey. Ms. Ivey has business experience as a practicing tax accountant from 1996 to 2021 and, as such, brings tax, budgeting and financial reporting skills to the Board. Currently, Ms. Ivey serves as the Chief Financial Officer for the Episcopal Church Building Fund since 2022 utilizing her financial knowledge and skills. Ms. Laura V. Morrison has over 30 years of experience in leadership roles at global stock exchanges and asset managers. She has extensive knowledge of ETFs as well as mutual funds, having set the strategy and managed the product development, sales distribution and marketing teams at a leading provider. Ms. Morrison also guided the growth of several listing exchanges in the U.S. and Europe including NYSE & Cboe.

Mr. Theo H. Pitt has experience as an investor, including his role as trustee of several other investment companies and business experience as Senior Partner of a financial consulting company, as a partner of a real estate partnership and as an Account Administrator for a money management firm.

Dr. David J. Urban. Dr. Urban is Dean Emeritus and Professor of Marketing at the Jones College of Business, Middle Tennessee State University. He earned a Ph.D. in Business Administration with a concentration in Marketing from the University of Michigan. Dr. Urban also holds a master's degree in Psychology from the University of Michigan and an undergraduate degree in Commerce with a concentration in Marketing from the University of Virginia. His extensive career is marked by significant budget responsibility and accountability, with expertise in marketing, strategic planning, organizational leadership, and management contributing to the Board's long-term goal setting.

The Trust does not believe any one factor is determinative in assessing a Trustee's qualifications, but that the collective experience of each Trustee makes them each highly qualified.

The Chairperson of the Board of Trustees is Ms. Ivey, who is not an "interested person" of the Trust, within the meaning of the 1940 Act. The Trust also has an independent Audit Committee that allows the Board to access the expertise necessary of oversee the Trust, identify risks, recognize Shareholder concerns and needs and highlight opportunities. The Audit Committee is able to focus Board time and attention to matters of interest to Shareholders and, through its private sessions with the Trust's auditor, Chief Compliance Officer and legal counsel, stay fully informed regarding management decisions.

Investment companies such as the series, face a number of risks, including investment risk, compliance risk and valuation risk. The Board oversees management of the Series risks directly and through its officers. While day-to-day risk management responsibilities rest with the Series Chief Compliance Officer, investment managers and other service providers, the Board monitors and tracks risk by: (1) receiving and reviewing quarterly reports related to the performance and operations of the Series; (2) reviewing and approving, as applicable, the compliance policies and procedures of the Trust, including the Trust's valuation policies and transaction procedures; (3) periodically meeting with the portfolio manager to review investment strategies, techniques and related risks; (4) meeting with representatives of key service providers, including the Series investment managers, administrator, distributor, transfer agent and the independent registered public accounting firm, to discuss the activities of the Series; (5) engaging the services of the Chief Compliance Officer of the Series to monitor and test the compliance procedures of the Trust and its service providers; (6) receiving and reviewing reports from the Trust's independent registered public accounting firm regarding the Series financial condition and the Trust's internal controls; and (7) receiving and reviewing an annual written report prepared by the Chief Compliance Officer reviewing the adequacy of the Trust's compliance policies and procedures and the effectiveness of their implementation. The Board has concluded that its general oversight of the investment manager and other service providers as implemented through the reporting and monitoring process outlined above allows the Board to effectively administer its risk oversight function.

Following is a list of the Trustees and executive officers of the Trust and their principal occupation over the last five years. The mailing address of each Trustee and officer is 8730 Stony Point Parkway, Suite 205, Richmond, Virginia, 23235, unless otherwise indicated.

NON-INTERESTED TRUSTEES

NAME, YEAR OF BIRTH AND POSITION WITH THE TRUST	TERM OF OFFICE AND LENGTH OF TIME SERVED	PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION(S) DURING THE PAST FIVE YEARS	NUMBER OF SERIES IN FUND COMPLEX OVERSEEN BY TRUSTEE	OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS HELD BY TRUSTEE
Mary Lou H. Ivey 1958 Trustee	Indefinite, Since August, 2024	Senior Vice President, Episcopal Church Building Fund (national nonprofit organization), since January 2022. Accountant, Harris, Hardy & Johnstone, P.C., (accounting firm), from 2008 to 2021.	17	Independent Trustee of World Funds Trust for the twenty- three series of that trust; Independent Trustee for ETF Opportunities Trust and the fifty series of that trust.
Laura V. Morrison 1966 Trustee	Indefinite, Since August, 2024	Owner, LVM Advisory LLC (consulting services to financial institutions) since 2024; Director and Member of Nominating and Governance Committee, Women in ETFs (not for profit) (2021 – present); Formerly, Chief Revenue Officer, Direxion (2022-2023); Senior Vice President, Global Head of Listings, Cboe Global Markets (2015-2022).	17	Independent Trustee of World Funds Trust for the twenty- three series of that trust; Independent Trustee for ETF Opportunities Trust and the fifty series of that trust.
Theo H. Pitt, Jr. 1936 Trustee	Indefinite, Since August, 2024	Senior Partner, Community Financial Institutions Consulting (bank consulting) since 1997.	17	Independent Trustee of Chesapeake Investment Trust for the one series of that trust; Hillman Capital Management Investment Trust; World Funds Trust for the twenty-three series of that trust; Independent Trustee for ETF Opportunities Trust and the fifty series of that trust; and Starboard Investment Trust for the ten series of that trust; (all registered investment companies).
Dr. David J. Urban 1955 Trustee	Indefinite, Since August, 2024	Dean Emeritus (since 2023) and Professor of Marketing (since 2013), Jones College of Business, Middle Tennessee State University.	17	Independent Trustee of World Funds Trust for the twenty- three series of that trust; Independent Trustee for ETF Opportunities Trust and the fifty series of that trust.

OFFICERS WHO ARE NOT TRUSTEES

NAME, YEAR OF BIRTH AND POSITION(S) WITH THE TRUST	TERM OF OFFICE AND LENGTH OF TIME SERVED	PRINCIPAL OCCUPATION(S) DURING THE PAST FIVE YEARS
David Bogaert 1963 President	Indefinite, Since August, 2024	Managing Director of Business Development, Commonwealth Fund Services, Inc. (fund administration), October 2013 – present.
Karen M. Shupe 1964 Treasurer and Principal Executive Officer	Indefinite, Since August, 2024	Managing Director of Fund Operations, Commonwealth Fund Services, Inc., 2003 to present.
Ann T. MacDonald 1954 Assistant Treasurer and Principal Financial Officer	Indefinite, Since August, 2024	Managing Director, Fund Administration and Fund Accounting, Commonwealth Fund Services, Inc., 2003 to present.
John H. Lively 1969 Secretary	Indefinite, Since August, 2024	Attorney, Practus, LLP (law firm), May 2018 to present; Attorney, The Law Offices of John H. Lively & Associates, Inc. (law firm), March 2010 to May 2018.
Holly B. Giangiulio 1962 Assistant Secretary	Indefinite, Since August, 2024	Managing Director, Corporate Operations, Commonwealth Fund Services, Inc., January 2015 to present.
Laura Wright 1972 Assistant Secretary	Indefinite, Since August, 2024	Manager, Fund Administration, Commonwealth Fund Services, Inc., August 2023 to present, Fund Administrator, Commonwealth Fund Services, Inc., 2016 to 2023.
J. Stephen King 1962 Assistant Secretary	Indefinite, Since August, 2024	Attorney, Practus, LLP (law firm), 2020 to present; The TCW Group, Inc. (investment management firm), 2017 to 2020.
Gino E. Malaspina 1968 Assistant Secretary	Indefinite, Since August, 2024	Counsel, Practus, LLP (law firm), since August 2022; Vice President and Senior Counsel, State Street Corporation, October 2019 to July 2022; Senior Counsel, Apex Fund Services (formerly, Atlantic Fund Services), June 2014 to October 2019.
Soth Chin 1966 Assistant Chief Compliance Officer	Indefinite, Since August, 2024	Managing Member of Fit Compliance, LLC (financial services compliance and consulting firm) since October 2016.
Julian G. Winters 1968 Chief Compliance Officer	Indefinite, Since August, 2024	Managing Member of Watermark Solutions, LLC (investment compliance and consulting firm) since March 2007.

The Board of Trustees oversees the Trust and certain aspects of the services provided by the Manager and the Series other service providers. Each Trustee will hold office until their successors have been duly elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation or removal. Each officer of the Trust serves at the pleasure of the Board and for a term of one year or until their successors have been duly elected and qualified.

Board Committees

The Board of Trustees has established an Audit Committee, Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and Qualified Legal Compliance Committee.

The Audit Committee of the Board is comprised of Ms. Ivey, Ms. Morrison, Mr. Pitt, and Dr. Urban. The functions of the Audit Committee are to meet with the Trust's independent auditors to review the scope and findings of the annual audit, discuss the Trust's accounting policies, discuss any recommendations of the independent auditors with respect to the Trust's management practices, review the impact of changes in accounting standards on the Trust's financial statements, recommend to the Board the selection of the independent registered public accounting firm, and perform such other duties as may be assigned to the Audit Committee by the Board.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance committee is comprised of Ms. Ivey, Ms. Morrison, Mr. Pitt, and Dr. Urban. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee's purposes, duties and powers are set forth in its written charter, which is described in Exhibit C – the charter also describes the process by which Shareholders of the Trust may make Trustee nominations.

The Qualified Legal Compliance Committee is comprised of Ms. Ivey, Ms. Morrison, Mr. Pitt, and Dr. Urban. The Qualified Legal Compliance Committee receives, investigates, and makes recommendations as to the appropriate remedial action in connection with any report of evidence of a material violation of the securities laws or breach of fiduciary duty or similar violation by the Trust, its officers, Trustees, or agents.

<u>Trustee Compensation</u>. Each Trustee who is not an "interested person" of the Trust receives compensation for their services to the Trust. All Trustees are reimbursed for any out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with attendance at meetings. Each Trustee receives a retainer fee at the annualized rate of \$10,000, paid quarterly. Because the Trust has not commenced operations, the Trustees did not receive any compensation for the period.

<u>Trustee Ownership of Series Shares.</u> The Series has not yet commenced operations as of the date of this SAI; therefore, no Trustee currently owns shares of any Series.

<u>Policies Concerning Personal Investment Activities.</u> The Trust and the Manager have each adopted a Code of Ethics, pursuant to Rule 17j-1 under the 1940 Act that permit investment personnel, subject to their particular code of ethics, to invest in securities, including securities that may be purchased or held by the Series, for their own account.

The Codes of Ethics are on file with, and can be reviewed on the EDGAR Database on the SEC's Internet website at http://www.sec.gov.

Proxy Voting Policies. The Trust is required to disclose information concerning the Trust's proxy voting policies and procedures to Shareholders. The Board has delegated to Manager the responsibility for decisions regarding proxy voting for securities held by the Series. The Manager will vote such proxies in accordance with its proxy policies and procedures, which have been reviewed by the Board. The proxy voting policy for the Trust can be found in Exhibit A, the proxy voting policy of the Manager can be found in Exhibit B. Any material changes to the proxy policies and procedures will be submitted to the Board for approval. Information regarding how the Series voted proxies relating to portfolio securities for the most recent 12-month period ending June 30, will be available (1) without charge, upon request by calling 844-954-5333; (2) on or through the Series website at www.adrhedged.com; and (3) on the SEC's Internet website at http://www.sec.gov.

CONTROL PERSONS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF SECURITIES

The Series are newly organized and as of the date of this SAI had no operations.

MANAGEMENT SERVICES

The following information supplements and should be read in conjunction with the section in the Prospectus entitled "Management."

Investment Manager

Precidian Funds, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, serves as investment manager to the Series and has overall responsibility for the general management and administration of the Trust, pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement between the Trust and the Manager ("Management Agreement"). The Manager was organized in 2010 and is located at 301 S State Street, N002, Newtown, Pennsylvania 18940. Under the Management Agreement, the Manager, subject to the supervision of the Board, provides an investment program for the Series and is responsible for managing the investment of the Series assets in conformity with the stated investment policies of the Series. The Manager is responsible for placing purchase and sale orders and providing continuous supervision of the investment portfolio of each of the Series.

In addition to providing management services, under the Management Agreement, the Manager also: (i) supervises all non-management operations of the Series; (ii) provides personnel to perform such executive, administrative and clerical services as are reasonably necessary to provide effective administration of the Series; (iii) arranges for (a) the preparation of all required tax returns; (b) the preparation and submission of reports to existing Shareholders; (c) the periodic updating of prospectuses and statements of additional information; and (d) the preparation of reports to be filed with the SEC and other regulatory authorities; (iv) maintains the Series records; and (v) provides office space and all necessary office equipment and services.

The Management Agreement will remain in effect for an initial two-year term from commencement of operations and will continue in effect with respect to each Series from year to year thereafter provided such continuance is specifically approved at least annually by: (i) the vote of a majority of the Series outstanding voting securities or a majority of the Trustees of the Trust; and (ii) the vote of a majority of the Independent Trustees of the Trust, cast in person at a meeting called for the purpose of voting on such approval.

The Management Agreement will terminate automatically if assigned (as defined in the 1940 Act). The Management Agreement is also terminable at any time without penalty by the Trustees of the Trust or by vote of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the Series on 60 days' written notice to the Manager or by the Manager on 60 days' written notice to the Trust. The Trust has entered into a licensing agreement with the Manager pursuant to which the Trust may use the terms "Precidian" and "ADRhedgedTM" without payment of a fee to the Manager under the agreement, provided that the Manager continues to be the Series investment manager pursuant to an investment management agreement with the Trust.

Pursuant to the Management Agreement the Manager is entitled to receive a fee, payable monthly, at the annual rate based on a percentage of the Series average daily net assets as follows:

Series Name	Management Fee
Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV ADRhedged™	0.17%
AstraZeneca PLC ADRhedged™	0.17%
Banco Santander S.A. ADRhedged™	0.17%
BP p.l.c. ADRhedged™	0.17%
British American Tobacco p.l.c. ADRhedged TM	0.17%
Diageo plc ADRhedged™	0.17%
GSK plc ADRhedged™	0.17%
HSBC Holdings plc ADRhedged™	0.17%
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group, Inc. ADRhedged™	0.17%
Novartis AG ADRhedged TM	0.17%
Novo Nordisk A/.S (B Shares) ADRhedged TM	0.17%
Shell plc ADRhedged™	0.17%
Sanofi ADRhedged TM	0.17%
SAP SE ADRhedged™	0.17%
TotalEnergies SE ADRhedged™	0.17%
Toyota Motor Corporation ADRhedged™	0.17%
Vodafone Group Plc ADRhedged TM	0.17%

From time to time, the Manager may waive all or a portion of its fees.

Portfolio Managers

As described in the prospectus, Daniel McCabe and Mark Criscitello serve as the Portfolio Managers for each Series and are responsible for the day-to-day management of the portfolios of the Series.

In addition to the Series, the Portfolio Managers are responsible for the day-to-day management of certain other accounts, as listed below. The information below is provided as of July 31, 2024:

	Other		Other				
	Registered		Pooled				Total
	Investment	Assets	Investment	Assets		Assets	Assets
Portfolio	Company	Managed	Vehicle	Managed	Other	Managed	Managed
Manager	Accounts	(\$ millions)	Accounts	(\$ millions)	Accounts	(\$ millions)	(\$ millions)
Daniel McCabe	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0
Mark Criscitello	N/A	0	N/A	0	0	0	0

Potential Conflicts Of Interest

Because the portfolio managers manage multiple portfolios for multiple clients, the potential for conflicts of interest exists. Each portfolio manager may manage portfolios having substantially the same investment style as the Series. However, the portfolios managed by a portfolio manager may not have portfolio compositions identical to those of the Series managed by the portfolio manager due, for example, to specific investment limitations or guidelines present in some portfolios or accounts, but not others. The portfolio managers may purchase securities for one portfolio and not another portfolio, and the performance of securities purchased for one portfolio may vary from the performance of securities purchased for other portfolios. A portfolio manager may place transactions on behalf of other accounts that are directly or indirectly contrary to investment decisions made on behalf of the Series or make investment decisions that are similar to those made for the Series, both of which have the potential to adversely impact a Series depending on market conditions. For example, a portfolio manager may purchase a security in one portfolio while appropriately selling that same security in another portfolio. In addition, some of these portfolios have fee structures that are or have the potential to be higher than the management fees paid by the Series, which can cause potential conflicts in the allocation of investment opportunities between a Series and the other accounts. However, the compensation structure for portfolio managers does not generally provide incentive to favor one account over another because that part of a manager's bonus based on performance is not based on the performance of one account to the exclusion of others. There are many other factors considered in determining the portfolio manager's bonus and there is no formula that is applied to weight the factors listed (see "Portfolio Manager Compensation Structure" below). In addition, current trading practices do not allow the Manager to intentionally favor one portfolio over another as trades are executed as trade orders are received. Program trades created from the portfolio rebalance are executed at market on close.

Portfolio Manager Compensation Structure

Compensation for the portfolio managers is based on the competitive marketplace and consists of a fixed base salary plus a variable annual cash incentive award. In addition, non-cash incentives may be awarded from time to time. The annual incentive award is discretionary and is based on a quantitative and qualitative evaluation of each portfolio manager's investment performance and contribution to his or her respective team plus the financial performance of the investment business unit and the Manager as a whole. The annual incentive award is not based on performance of a Series or the amount of assets held in a Series. Moreover, no material differences exist between the compensation structure for mutual fund accounts and other types of accounts.

Mr. McCabe and Mr. Criscitello will not be directly compensated for Portfolio Management of these Series.

Portfolio Manager Ownership of Securities

As of the date of this SAI, the Series have not commenced operations, and therefore, the Portfolio Managers do not beneficially own shares of any of the Series.

OTHER SERVICE PROVIDERS

Co-Administrator, Series Accountant, Transfer Agent and Custodian. The Bank of New York Mellon ("BNY Mellon"), 240 Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10286, serves as co-administrator, series accountant, transfer and services agent, and custodian of the Trust and Series (BNY Mellon may be referred to herein in such capacities, the "Custodian" or the "Transfer Agent," as applicable). Pursuant to the Custody Agreement between BNY Mellon and the Trust, BNY Mellon has agreed to (1) make receipts and disbursements of money on behalf of the Series; (2) collect and receive all income and other payments and distributions on account of the Series portfolio investments; and (3) make periodic reports to the Series concerning the Series operations. The Custodian does not exercise any supervisory function over the purchase and sale of securities. As Transfer Agent for the Series, the Transfer Agent has agreed to (1) issue and redeem Shares of the Series; (2) make dividend and other distributions to Shareholders of the Series; (3) respond to correspondence by Series Shareholders relating to its duties; (4) maintain Shareholder accounts; and (5) make periodic reports to the Series. As compensation for the foregoing services, BNY receives certain out-of-pocket costs, transaction fees and asset-based fees which are paid monthly by the Administrator. Pursuant to a Fund Administration and Accounting Agreement, BNY Mellon provides necessary administrative, legal, tax, accounting services, and financial reporting for the maintenance and operations of the Trust and the Series.

<u>Co-Administrator.</u> Pursuant to a Fund Services Agreement, Commonwealth Fund Services, Inc., 8730 Stony Point Parkway, Suite 205, Richmond, Virginia 23235 ("CFS") serves as the Series co-administrator. In its capacity as administrator, CFS supervises certain aspects of the operations of the Series except those performed by the Manager or BNY Mellon. CFS provides certain administrative services and facilities to the Series, including, among other responsibilities, assisting BNY Mellon and the other service providers in the preparation and filing of documents required for compliance by the Series with applicable laws and regulations and arranging for the maintenance of books and records of the Trust and the Series. In addition, CFS makes available the office space, equipment, personnel and facilities required to provide such services. CFS also provides persons satisfactory to the Board to serve as officers of the Trust. CFS receives an

asset-based fee computed daily and paid monthly on the average daily net assets of the Series. Under the Fund Services Agreement, CFS has agreed to pay all expenses of the Trust, except for: (i) brokerage expenses and other expenses (such as stamp taxes) connected with the execution of portfolio transactions or in connection with creation and redemption transactions; (ii) interest and tax expenses; (iii) dividend or distribution expenses; (iv) legal fees or expenses in connection with any arbitration, litigation or pending or threatened arbitration or litigation, including any settlements in connection therewith; (v) distribution fees and expenses, if any, paid by the Trust under any distribution plan adopted pursuant to Rule 12b-1 under the Investment Company Act; (vi) non-routine or extraordinary expenses; and (vii) the management fees payable to the Manager. CFS may be reimbursed for such expenses by the Series other service providers, including the Manager.

<u>Distributor and Principal Underwriter</u>. Foreside Fund Services, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of Foreside Financial Group, LLC (doing business as ACA Group), (the "Distributor") the Series distributor, is located at Three Canal Plaza, Suite 100, Portland, Maine 04101. The Distributor is a broker-dealer registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "1934 Act"), and a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc. ("FINRA").

Shares will be continuously offered for sale by the Trust through the Distributor only in whole Creation Units, as described in the section of this SAI entitled "Additional Information About Purchases and Sales." The Distributor also acts as an agent for the Trust. The Distributor will deliver a prospectus to persons purchasing Shares in Creation Units and will maintain records of both orders placed with it and confirmations of acceptance furnished by it. The Distributor has no role in determining the investment policies of the Series or which securities are to be purchased or sold by the Series.

Distribution Plan

The Trust has adopted a distribution and Shareholder service plan (the "Plan") with respect to the Series in accordance with the provisions of Rule 12b-1 under the Investment Company Act, which regulates circumstances under which an investment company may directly or indirectly bear expenses relating to the distribution of its shares. There is no current intention to charge such fees pursuant to the Plan. Continuance of the Plan must be approved annually by a majority of the Trustees of the Trust and by a majority of the independent Trustees who have no direct or indirect financial interest in the Plan or in any agreements related to the Plan ("Qualified Trustees"). The Plan requires that quarterly written reports of amounts spent under the Plan and the purposes of such expenditures be furnished to and reviewed by the Trustees. The Plan may not be amended to increase materially the amount that may be spent thereunder without approval by a majority of the outstanding shares of the Series. All material amendments of the Plan will require approval by a majority of the Trustees of the Trustees.

The Plan provides that the Series may pay the Distributor or certain other parties an annual fee of up to a maximum of 0.25% of the average daily net assets of the Shares. Under the Plan, the Distributor or the Series may make payments pursuant to written agreements to financial institutions and intermediaries such as banks, savings and loan associations and insurance companies including, without limit, investment counselors, broker-dealers and the Distributor's affiliates and subsidiaries (collectively, "Agents") as compensation for services and reimbursement of expenses incurred in connection with distribution assistance. The Plan is characterized as a compensation plan since the distribution fee will be paid to the Distributor or other parties without regard to the distribution expenses incurred by the Distributor or other parties or the amount of payments made to other financial institutions and intermediaries. The Manager pays the Distributor a fee for certain distribution related services. The Trust intends to operate the Plan in accordance with its terms and with FINRA rules concerning sales charges.

Under the Plan, subject to the supervision of the Trustees of the Trust, the Trust may, directly or indirectly, engage in any activities primarily intended to result in the sale of Shares of the Series of the class(es) of Shares identified in Section 2(a) of this Plan, which activities may include, but are not limited to, the following:

- (a) payments to the Trust's distributor (the "Distributor") and to securities dealers and others in respect of the sale of Shares of the Series;
- (b) payment of compensation to and expenses of personnel (including personnel of organizations with which the Trust has entered into agreements related to this Plan) who engage in or support distribution of Shares of the Series or who render Shareholder support services not otherwise provided by the Trust's transfer agent, administrator, or custodian, including but not limited to, answering inquiries regarding the Trust, processing Shareholder transactions, providing personal services and/or the maintenance of Shareholder accounts, providing other Shareholder liaison services, responding to Shareholder inquiries, providing information on Shareholder investments in the Shares of the Series, and providing such other distribution and Shareholder services as the Trust may reasonably request, arranging for bank wires, assisting Shareholders in changing dividend options, account designations and addresses, providing information periodically to Shareholders showing their positions in the Series, forwarding communications from the Series such as

proxies, Shareholder reports, annual reports, and tax notices to Shareholders, processing purchase, exchange, and redemption requests from Shareholders and placing orders with the Series or its service providers;

- (c) formulation and implementation of marketing and promotional activities, including, but not limited to, direct mail promotions and television, radio, newspaper, magazine and other mass media advertising;
 - (d) preparation, printing and distribution of sales literature;
- (e) preparation, printing and distribution of prospectuses and statements of additional information and reports of the Trust for recipients other than existing Shareholders of the Trust;
- (f) obtaining information and providing explanations to wholesale and retail distributors of contracts regarding Series investment objectives and policies and other information about the Series, including the performance of the Series;
- (g) obtaining such information, analyses and reports with respect to marketing and promotional activities as the Trust may, from time to time, deem advisable.

The Trust is authorized to engage in the activities listed above, and in any other activities primarily intended to result in the sale of Shares of the Series, either directly or through other persons with which the Trust has entered into agreements related to this Plan.

The Manager and its affiliates may, out of their own resources, pay amounts to third parties for distribution or marketing services on behalf of the Series. The making of these payments could create a conflict of interest for a financial intermediary receiving such payments.

<u>Legal Counsel</u>. Practus, LLP, 11300 Tomahawk Creek Parkway, Suite 310, Leawood, Kansas 66211, serves as legal counsel to the Trust and the Series.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Trustees have selected the firm of KPMG LLP, 191 West Nationwide Blvd., Suite 500, Columbus, Ohio 43215, to serve as independent registered public accounting firm for the Series for the current fiscal year and to audit the annual financial statements of the Series, prepare the Series federal, state and excise tax returns, and consult with the Series on matters of accounting and federal and state income taxation.

The independent registered public accounting firm will audit the financial statements of the Series at least once each year. Shareholders will receive annual audited and semi-annual (unaudited) reports when published and written confirmation of all transactions in their account. A copy of the most recent Annual Report will accompany the SAI whenever a Shareholder or a prospective investor requests it.

PORTFOLIO TRANSACTIONS AND BROKERAGE

Subject to the general supervision by the Board, the Manager is responsible for decisions to buy and sell securities for the Series, the selection of brokers and dealers to effect the transactions, which may be affiliates of the Manager, and the negotiation of brokerage commissions. The Series may execute brokerage or other agency transactions through registered broker-dealers who receive compensation for their services in conformity with the 1940 Act, the Exchange Act, and the rules and regulations thereunder. Compensation may also be paid in connection with riskless principal transactions (in Nasdaq or over-the-counter securities and securities listed on an exchange) and agency Nasdaq or over-the-counter transactions executed with an electronic communications network or an alternative trading system.

The Series give primary consideration to obtaining the most favorable prices and efficient executions of transactions in implementing trading policy. Consistent with this policy, when securities transactions are traded on an exchange, the Series policy is to pay commissions which are considered fair and reasonable without necessarily determining that the lowest possible commissions are paid in all circumstances. The Manager believes that a requirement always to seek the lowest possible commission cost could impede effective portfolio management and preclude the Series from obtaining a high quality of brokerage services. In seeking to determine the reasonableness of brokerage commissions paid in any transaction, the Manager relies upon its experience and knowledge regarding commissions generally charged by various brokers and on its judgment in evaluating the brokerage and research services received from the broker effecting the transaction. Such determinations are necessarily subjective and imprecise, as in most cases an exact dollar value for those services is not ascertainable.

The Manager does not consider the provision or value of research, products or services a broker or dealer may provide, if any, as

a factor in the selection of a broker or dealer or the determination of the reasonableness of commissions paid in connection with portfolio transactions. The Manager does not consider sales of Shares by broker-dealers as a factor in the selection of broker-dealers to execute portfolio transactions.

Due to the unique nature of each Series as a grantor trust, certain aspects to the current hedging activities of each Series operations cannot be changed without adversely affecting the Series status as a grantor trust. As a result, certain service providers, such as a Series trading counterparties, cannot be changed without affecting the Series tax status. Specifically, each Series counterparty for the Currency Hedge Contracts generally cannot be changed without affecting the Series tax status. The Manager will monitor the Currency Hedge Contracts to ensure the economics are reflective of market conditions.

Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce will serve as the counterparty with each Series in connection with the Currency Hedge Contracts. In order to maintain the Series status as a grantor trust, the Manager will not seek price quotes from other potential counterparties. As a result, the Series may not always achieve the most favorable economics available in the market, although the Manager will monitor the Currency Hedge Contracts as described in the preceding paragraph.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONCERNING SHARES

Organization and Description of Shares of Beneficial Interest

The Trust is a Delaware statutory trust and registered investment company. The Trust was organized on August 27, 2010, and has authorized capital of an unlimited number of shares of beneficial interest of no par value which may be issued in more than one class or series.

Under Delaware law, the Trust is not required to hold an annual Shareholders meeting if the 1940 Act does not require such a meeting. Generally, there will not be annual meetings of Trust Shareholders. If requested by Shareholders of at least 10% of the outstanding Shares of the Trust, the Trust will call a meeting of the Trust's Shareholders for the purpose of voting upon the question of removal of a Trustee and will assist in communications with other Trust Shareholders. Shareholders holding two-thirds of Shares outstanding may remove Trustees from office by votes cast at a meeting of Trust Shareholders or by written consent.

All Shares are freely transferable; provided, however, that Shares may not be redeemed individually, but only in Creation Units. The Shares do not have preemptive rights or cumulative voting rights, and none of the Shares have any preference to conversion, exchange, dividends, retirements, liquidation, redemption or any other feature. Shares have equal voting rights, except that, if the Trust creates additional series, only Shares of that series may be entitled to vote on a matter affecting that particular series. Trust Shareholders are entitled to require the Trust to redeem Creation Units if such Shareholders are Authorized Participants. The Declaration of Trust confers upon the Board the power, by resolution, to alter the number of Shares constituting a Creation Unit or to specify that Shares of the Trust may be individually redeemable. The Trust reserves the right to adjust the stock prices of Shares to maintain convenient trading ranges for investors. Any such adjustments would be accomplished through stock splits or reverse stock splits which would have no effect on the net assets of the Series.

The Trust's Declaration of Trust disclaims liability of the Shareholders or the officers of the Trust for acts or obligations of the Trust which are binding only on the assets and property of the Trust. The Declaration of Trust provides for indemnification by the Trust for all loss and expense of the Series Shareholders held personally liable for the obligations of the Trust. The risk of a Trust's Shareholder incurring financial loss on account of Shareholder liability is limited to circumstances in which the Series itself would not be able to meet the Trust's obligations and this risk should be considered remote. If a Series does not grow to a size to permit it to be economically viable, the Series may cease operations. In such an event, Shareholders may be required to liquidate or transfer their Shares at an inopportune time and Shareholders may lose money on their investment.

BOOK ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM

DTC acts as securities depository for the Shares. The Shares of the Series are represented by global securities registered in the name of DTC or its nominee and deposited with, or on behalf of, DTC. Except as provided below, certificates are not issued for Shares.

DTC has advised the Trust as follows: DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Exchange Act. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues and money market instruments (from over 100 countries). DTC was created to hold securities of its participants ("DTC Participants") and to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among the DTC Participants in such securities through electronic computerized bookentry transfers and pledges in accounts of DTC Participants, thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of securities certificates. DTC Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations and certain

other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, the NSCC and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. More specifically, DTCC is owned by a number of its DTC Participants and by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the NYSE Alternext US (formerly known as the American Stock Exchange LLC) ("Alternext") and FINRA.

Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a DTC Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect Participants"). DTC agrees with and represents to DTC Participants that it administers its book-entry system in accordance with its rules and bylaws and requirements of law. Beneficial ownership of Shares is limited to DTC Participants, Indirect Participants and persons holding interests through DTC Participants and Indirect Participants. Ownership of beneficial interests in Shares (owners of such beneficial interests are referred to herein as "Beneficial Owners") is shown on, and the transfer of ownership is effected only through, records maintained by DTC (with respect to DTC Participants) and on the records of DTC Participants (with respect to Indirect Participants and Beneficial Owners that are not DTC Participants). Beneficial Owners receive from or through DTC Participant a written confirmation relating to their purchase of Shares. The laws of some jurisdictions may require that certain purchasers of securities take physical delivery of such securities in definitive form. Such laws may impair the ability of certain investors to acquire beneficial interests in Shares.

Beneficial Owners of Shares are not entitled to have Shares registered in their names, do not receive or are entitled to receive physical delivery of certificates in definitive form and are not considered the registered holders of the Shares. Accordingly, each Beneficial Owner must rely on the procedures of DTC, DTC Participants and any Indirect Participants through which such Beneficial Owner holds its interests in order to exercise any rights of a holder of Shares. The Trust understands that under existing industry practice, in the event the Trust requests any action of holders of Shares, or a Beneficial Owner desires to take any action that DTC, as the record owner of all outstanding Shares, is entitled to take, DTC would authorize the DTC Participants to take such action and that the DTC Participants would authorize the Indirect Participants and Beneficial Owners acting through such DTC Participants to take such action and would otherwise act upon the instructions of Beneficial Owners owning through them. DTC, through its nominee Cede & Co., is the record owner of all outstanding Shares.

Conveyance of all notices, statements and other communications to Beneficial Owners are effected as follows. DTC makes available to the Trust upon request and for a fee to be charged to the Trust a listing of Share holdings of each DTC Participant. The Trust shall inquire of each such DTC Participant as to the number of Beneficial Owners holding Shares, directly or indirectly, through such DTC Participant. The Trust shall provide each such DTC Participant with copies of such notice, statement or other communication, in such form, number and at such place as such DTC Participant may reasonably request, in order that such notice, statement or communication may be transmitted by such DTC Participant, directly or indirectly, to such Beneficial Owners. In addition, the Trust shall pay to each such DTC Participant a fair and reasonable amount as reimbursement for the expenses attendant to such transmittal, all subject to applicable statutory and regulatory requirements. Beneficial Owners may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to Shares by providing their names and addresses to the DTC registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.

Distributions of Shares shall be made to DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., as the registered holder of all Shares. DTC or its nominee, upon receipt of any such distributions, shall immediately credit DTC Participants' accounts with payments in amounts proportionate to their respective beneficial interests in Shares as shown on the records of DTC or its nominee. Payments by DTC Participants to Indirect Participants and Beneficial Owners of Shares held through such DTC Participants will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is now the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in a "street name," and will be the responsibility of such DTC Participants. The Trust has no responsibility or liability for any aspects of the records relating to or notices to Beneficial Owners, or payments made on account of beneficial ownership interests in such Shares, or for maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests or for any other aspect of the relationship between DTC and the DTC Participants or the relationship between such DTC Participants and the Indirect Participants and Beneficial Owners owning through such DTC Participants.

DTC may determine to discontinue providing its service with respect to Shares at any time by giving reasonable notice to the Trust and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable law. Under such circumstances, the Trust shall take action either to find a replacement for DTC to perform its functions at a comparable cost or, if such a replacement is unavailable, to issue and deliver printed certificates representing ownership of Shares, unless the Trust makes other arrangements with respect thereto satisfactory to the Alternext.

DTC rules applicable to DTC Participants are on file with the SEC. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtcc.org.

PURCHASE AND REDEMPTION OF CREATION UNITS

Creation

The Distributor processes purchase orders only on a day that the Exchange is open for trading (a "Business Day"). The Trust issues and sells Shares of a Series only in Creation Units on a continuous basis on any Business Day (the "Execution Date") following the timely receipt on the Execution Date by the Distributor of a request to create Creation Units at the Shares' NAV at the closing time of the regular trading session on the Exchange ("Closing Time") (normally 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time) on the Execution Date.

If a Shareholder wants to create Creation Units at any time, the Series will create such Creation Units upon the contribution of (i) a *pro rata* amount of ADRs ("Deposit Securities") or cash to purchase ADRs and (ii) a specified cash payment consisting of the *pro rata* amount of the Settlement Account ("Cash Component"), if any, calculated at the Closing Time on the Execution Date.

Deposit of Securities and Deposit or Delivery of Cash

The consideration for purchase of Creation Units of a Series generally consists of the Deposit Securities and the Cash Component. Together, the Deposit Securities and the Cash Component constitute the "Series Deposit," which represents the minimum investment amount for a Creation Unit of the Series. Due to the unique nature of each Series, Deposit Securities will consist solely of ADRs of the relevant underlying issuer for each particular Series and/or cash to purchase the relevant amount of ADRs.

The Custodian through NSCC (see the section of this SAI entitled "Purchase and Redemption of Creation Units—Creation—Procedures for Creation of Creation Units"), makes available on each Business Day, prior to the opening of business on the Exchange (currently 9:30 a.m. Eastern Time), an estimate of the required number of Deposit Securities to be included in the Series Deposit (based on information at the Closing Time on the previous Business Day) for a Series. The actual Series Deposit, including Deposit Securities and the Cash Component, for a Creation Unit will be calculated at the close of business on the Execution Date.

The number of ADRs representing Deposit Securities required to create Creation Units for a Series changes from time to time as a result of corporate actions and permitted sales of ADRs by the Manager. In addition, the Trust reserves the right to permit the substitution of an amount of cash (*i.e.*, a "Cash In Lieu Amount") to replace all or a portion of the Deposit Securities that may not be available in sufficient quantity for delivery or that may not be eligible for transfer through the systems of DTC or the Clearing Process (discussed below), or which might not be eligible for trading by an Authorized Participant (as defined below) or the investor for which it is acting or other relevant reason, provided in each case the Series can immediately purchase the required *pro rata* amount of ADRs using the Cash In Lieu Amount. Purchases of Deposit Securities for Creation Units principally or in part for cash, if permitted, shall be effected in essentially the same manner as in-kind purchases of Creation Units of the Series. The brokerage and related transaction costs associated with the purchase of Deposit Securities by the Series, in addition to the creation transaction fee for such Series, will be solely borne by the Authorized Participant (defined below).

In addition to the estimated number of ADRs constituting the Deposit Securities of the Series Deposit, the Custodian, through the NSCC, also makes available on each Business Day the estimated Cash Component per outstanding Creation Unit of the Series. However, the actual Series Deposit, including Deposit Securities and the Cash Component, for a Creation Unit will be calculated at the Closing Time on the Execution Date.

Procedures for Creation of Creation Units

All orders to create Creation Units must be placed with the Distributor either: (1) through Continuous Net Settlement System of the NSCC ("Clearing Process"), a clearing agency that is registered with the SEC, by a "Participating Party," (i.e., a broker-dealer or other participant in the Clearing Process); or (2) outside the Clearing Process by a DTC Participant (see the section of this SAI entitled "Additional Information Concerning Shares — Book Entry Only System"). In each case, the Participating Party or the DTC Participant must have executed an agreement with the Distributor with respect to creations and redemptions of Creation Units (a "Participant Agreement"); such parties are collectively referred to as "APs" or "Authorized Participants." Investors should contact the Distributor for the names of Authorized Participants. All Series Shares, whether created through or outside the Clearing Process, are entered on the records of DTC in the name of Cede & Co. for the account of a DTC Participant.

The Distributor processes orders to purchase Creation Units received by U.S. mail, telephone, facsimile and other electronic means of communication by the closing time of the regular trading session on the Exchange ("Closing Time") (normally 4:00 p.m. Eastern Time) on the Execution Date, as long as they are in proper form. Mail is received periodically throughout the day. An order sent by U.S. mail is opened and time stamped when it is received. If an order to purchase Creation Units is received in proper form by the Closing Time on the Execution Date, then it will be processed at the Closing Time on the Execution Date, *i.e.*, the next Business Day. Purchase orders received in proper form after the Closing Time will be deemed to be transmitted on the following Business Day (the "Deemed Execution Date") and will be priced based on the NAV determined at the Closing Time on the Deemed Execution Date. Custom orders must be received by the Distributor no later than 3:00 p.m. Eastern Time on the Execution Date to be deemed properly tendered. A custom order may be placed by an Authorized Participant in the event that the Series permits the substitution of an amount of cash to replace some or all Deposit Securities which may not be available in sufficient quantity for delivery or which may not be eligible for trading by such Authorized Participant or

the investor for which it is acting or other relevant reason, provided in each case that the Series can immediately purchase the required *pro rata* amount of the Deposit Securities using such cash amount. Orders must be transmitted by an Authorized Participant by telephone or other transmission method acceptable to the Distributor pursuant to procedures set forth in the Participant Agreement, as described below in the sections of this SAI entitled "Purchase and Redemption of Creation Units—Placement of Creation Orders Using Clearing Process" and "Purchase and Redemption of Creation Units—Placement of Creation Orders Outside Clearing Process."

All orders to create Creation Units from investors who are not Authorized Participants shall be placed with an Authorized Participant in the form required by such Authorized Participant. In addition, the Authorized Participant may request the investor to make certain representations or enter into agreements with respect to the order, *e.g.*, to provide for payments of cash, when required. Investors should be aware that their particular broker may not have executed a Participant Agreement and, therefore, orders to create Creation Units of the Series have to be placed by the investor's broker through an Authorized Participant that has executed a Participant Agreement. In such cases there may be additional charges to such investor. At any given time, there may be only a limited number of broker-dealers that have executed a Participant Agreement.

Those placing orders for Creation Units through the Clearing Process should afford sufficient time to permit proper submission of the order to the Distributor prior to the Closing Time on the Execution Date. Orders for Creation Units that are effected outside the Clearing Process are likely to require transmittal by the DTC Participant earlier on the Execution Date than orders effected using the Clearing Process. Those persons placing orders outside the Clearing Process should ascertain the deadlines applicable to DTC and the Federal Reserve Bank wire system by contacting the operations department of the broker or depository institution effectuating such transfer of the Series Deposit. For more information about Clearing Process and DTC, see the sections of this SAI entitled "Purchase and Redemption of Creation Units—Creation—Placement of Creation Orders Using the Clearing Process" and "Purchase and Redemption of Creation Units—Creation—Placement of Creation Orders Outside the Clearing Process."

Placement of Creation Orders Through the Clearing Process

The Clearing Process is the process of creating or redeeming Creation Units through the Continuous Net Settlement System of NSCC. Series Deposits made through the Clearing Process must be delivered through a Participating Party that has executed a Participant Agreement. The Participant Agreement authorizes the Distributor to transmit through the Custodian to NSCC, on behalf of the Participating Party, such trade instructions as are necessary to effect the Participating Party's creation order. Pursuant to such trade instructions to NSCC, the Participating Party agrees to deliver the Series Deposit to the Trust, together with such additional information as may be required by the Distributor. An order to create Creation Units through the Clearing Process is deemed received by the Distributor on the Execution Date if: (1) such order is received by the Distributor not later than the Closing Time (or 3:00 p.m. Eastern Time in the case of a custom order) on such Execution Date; and (2) all other procedures set forth in the Participant Agreement are properly followed.

Placement of Creation Orders Outside Clearing Process

Series Deposits made outside the Clearing Process must be delivered through a DTC Participant that has executed a Participant Agreement. A DTC Participant who wishes to place an order creating Creation Units to be effected outside the Clearing Process does not need to be a Participating Party, but such orders must state that the DTC Participant is not using the Clearing Process and that the creation of Creation Units will instead be effected through a transfer of the Deposit Securities and Cash Component directly through DTC. The Series Deposit transfer must be ordered by the DTC Participant on the Business Day after the Execution Date in a timely fashion so as to ensure the delivery of the requisite number of Deposit Securities through DTC to the account of the Series by no later than 11:00 a.m. Eastern Time on the next Business Day following the Execution Date ("DTC Cut-Off-Time").

All questions as to the number of Deposit Securities to be delivered, and the validity, form and eligibility (including time of receipt) for the deposit of Deposit Securities, will be determined by the Trust, whose determination shall be final and binding. The amount of cash equal to the Cash Component must be transferred directly to the Custodian through the Federal Reserve Bank wire transfer system in a timely manner so as to be received by the Custodian no later than 2:00 p.m. Eastern Time on the next Business Day following the Execution Date. An order to create Creation Units outside the Clearing Process is deemed received by the Distributor on the Execution Date if: (1) such order is received by the Distributor not later than the Closing Time on such Execution Date; and (2) all other procedures set forth in the Participant Agreement are properly followed. However, if the Custodian does not receive both the required Deposit Securities and the Cash Component by 11:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m., respectively, on the next Business Day following the Execution Date, such order will be cancelled. Upon written notice to the Distributor, such cancelled order may be resubmitted the following Business Day. The delivery of Creation Units so created will occur no later than the next Business Day following the Execution Date.

Additional transaction costs may be borne by Authorized Participants with respect to transactions effected through a DTC participant outside the Clearing Process and in the limited circumstances in which any cash can be used in lieu of Deposit Securities to create Creation Units. See the section of this SAI entitled "Purchase and Sale of Creation Units—Creation—Creation Transaction Fee."

Acceptance of Orders for Creation Units

The Trust reserves the right to reject a creation order transmitted to it by the Distributor if: (1) the order is not in proper form; (2) the Deposit Securities or Cash Component delivered are not as required; (3) acceptance of the Series Deposit would, in the opinion of counsel, be unlawful; or (4) there exist circumstances outside the control of the Trust, the Custodian, the Distributor and the Manager that make it for all practical purposes impossible to process creation orders. Examples of such circumstances include acts of God; public service or utility problems such as fires, floods, extreme weather conditions and power outages resulting in telephone, telecopy and computer failures; market conditions or activities causing trading halts; systems failures involving computer or other information systems affecting the Trust, the Manager, the Distributor, DTC, NSCC, the Custodian or any other participant in the creation process and similar extraordinary events. The Distributor shall notify a prospective creator of Creation Units and/or the Authorized Participant acting on behalf of such prospective creator of its rejection of the order. The Trust, the Custodian and the Distributor are under no duty, however, to give notification of any defects or irregularities in the delivery of Series Deposits nor shall any of them incur any liability for the failure to give any such notification. All questions as to the number of ADRs in the Deposit Securities and the validity, form, eligibility and acceptance for deposit of any such Deposit Securities to be delivered shall be determined by the Trust and the Trust's determination shall be final and binding.

Creation Units typically are issued on a "T+1 basis" (that is, one Business Day after the Execution Date).

Creation Transaction Fee

Authorized Participants will be required to pay a fixed transaction fee ("Creation Transaction Fee") of \$250 for each creation order which represents the maximum transaction fee. Authorized Participants placing a creation order in whole or in part in cash will also be responsible for the Trust's brokerage and other transaction costs associated with using cash to purchase the requisite Deposit Securities. Investors are responsible for the costs of transferring the Deposit Securities to the account of the Trust.

Redemption

The process to redeem Creation Units is essentially the reverse of the process by which Creation Units are created, as described above. To redeem Shares directly from a Series, an investor must be an Authorized Participant or must redeem through an Authorized Participant. The Trust redeems Creation Units on a continuous basis through the Distributor at the Shares' NAV determined at the Closing Time on the day the redemption order is received ("Redemption Date"), after receipt of an order in proper form. The Series will not redeem Shares in amounts less than Creation Units. Authorized Participants must accumulate enough Shares in the secondary market to constitute a Creation Unit in order to have such Shares redeemed by the Trust. There can be no assurance, however, that there will be sufficient liquidity in the public trading market at any time to permit assembly of a Creation Unit.

With respect to a Series, the Custodian, through NSCC, makes available prior to the opening of business on the Exchange (currently 9:30 a.m. Eastern Time) on each Business Day, the approximate number of Deposit Securities that will be applicable to redemption requests received in proper form (as described below) on the Redemption Date. However, the actual Deposit Securities and Cash Component to be delivered upon a redemption request will be calculated at the Closing Time on the Redemption Date.

Unless cash redemptions are available or specified for a Series, the redemption proceeds for a Creation Unit will consist of (ii) a *pro rata* amount of ADRs and (ii) the Cash Component. Deposit Securities (including any portion of the Deposit Securities for which cash may be substituted) and the Cash Component, each as calculated as of the Closing Time on the Redemption Date, less a redemption transaction fee (see the section of this SAI entitled "Purchase and Redemption of Creation Units—Redemption—Redemption Transaction Fee") will be delivered upon redemption of Creation Units.

The right of redemption may be suspended or the date of payment postponed: (1) for any period during which the Exchange is closed (other than customary weekend and holiday closings); (2) for any period during which trading on the Exchange is suspended or restricted; (3) for any period during which an emergency exists as a result of which disposal of the Deposit Securities or determination of the Series NAV is not reasonably practicable; or (4) in such other circumstances as is permitted by the SEC.

Placement of Redemption Orders Through the Clearing Process

Orders to redeem Creation Units through the Clearing Process must be delivered through an Authorized Participant that has executed a Participant Agreement. Investors other than Authorized Participants are responsible for making arrangements with an Authorized Participant for an order to redeem. An order to redeem Creation Units is deemed received by the Trust on the Redemption Date if: (1) such order is received by the Distributor not later than Closing Time on such Redemption Date; and (2) all other procedures set forth in the Participant Agreement are properly followed. Such order will be effected based on the NAV of the applicable Series calculated as of the Closing Time on the Redemption Date. An order to redeem Creation Units using the Clearing Process made in proper form but received by the Distributor after Closing Time on the Redemption Date will be deemed to be received on the next Business Day immediately following the Redemption Date and will be effected at the NAV determined on the Redemption Date as of the Closing Time on such Business Day the order is deemed received. The requisite Deposit Securities and Cash Component will be transferred by the next Business Day following the Redemption Date.

Placement of Redemption Orders Outside Clearing Process

Orders to redeem Creation Units outside the Clearing Process must be delivered through a DTC Participant that has executed the Participant Agreement. A DTC Participant who wishes to place an order for redemption of Creation Units to be effected outside the Clearing Process does not need to be a Participating Party, but such orders must state that the DTC Participant is not using the Clearing Process and that redemption of Creation Units will instead be effected through transfer of the Deposit Securities and Cash Component directly through DTC. An order to redeem Creation Units outside the Clearing Process is deemed received by the Distributor on the Redemption Date if: (1) such order is received by the Distributor not later than Closing Time on such Redemption Date; (2) such order is accompanied or followed by the requisite number of Series Shares, which delivery must be made through DTC to the Custodian no later than the DTC Cut-Off-Time; and (3) all other procedures set forth in the Participant Agreement are properly followed. After the Distributor receives an order for redemption outside the Clearing Process, the Distributor will initiate procedures to transfer the requisite Deposit Securities and Cash Component on the next Business Day following the Redemption Date.

The calculation of the value of the Deposit Securities and the Cash Component to be delivered upon redemption will be made by the Custodian according to the procedures set forth the section of this SAI entitled "Determination of Net Asset Value" computed as of the Closing Time on the Redemption Date. Therefore, if a redemption order in proper form is submitted to the Distributor by a DTC Participant not later than Closing Time on the Redemption Date, and the requisite number of Series Shares are delivered to the Custodian prior to the DTC Cut-Off-Time, then the value of the Deposit Securities and the Cash Component to be delivered will be determined by the Custodian at the Closing Time on such Redemption Date. If, however, either: (1) the requisite number of Shares of the relevant Series are not delivered by the DTC Cut-Off-Time, as described above; or (2) the redemption order is not submitted in proper form, then the redemption order will not be deemed received as of the Redemption Date. In such case, the value of the Deposit Securities and Cash Component to be delivered will be computed as of the Closing Time on the Business Day immediately following the Redemption Date provided that the Series Shares of the relevant Series are delivered through DTC to the Custodian by 11:00 a.m. Eastern Time on such day pursuant to a properly submitted redemption order.

If it is not possible to effect deliveries of the Deposit Securities, the Trust may in its discretion exercise its option to redeem Series Shares in cash, and the redeeming Authorized Participant will be required to receive all redemption amounts in cash. In addition, an investor may request a redemption in cash that the Trust may, in its sole discretion, permit. In either case, the investor will receive a cash payment equal to the NAV of its Series Shares based on the NAV determined as of the Closing Time on the Redemption Date (minus a transaction fee which will include an additional charge for cash redemptions to offset the Series brokerage and other transaction costs associated with the disposition of Deposit Securities). Redemptions of Series Shares for Deposit Securities and the Cash Component will be subject to compliance with applicable federal and state securities laws and the Series (whether or not it otherwise permits cash redemptions) reserves the right to redeem Creation Units for cash to the extent that the Trust could not lawfully deliver specific Deposit Securities upon redemptions or could not do so without first registering the Series Securities under such laws. An Authorized Participant or an investor for which it is acting that is subject to a legal restriction with respect to a particular security included in the Deposit Securities applicable to the redemption of a Creation Unit may be paid an equivalent amount of cash. The Authorized Participant may request the redeeming Shareholder to complete an order form or to enter into agreements with respect to such redemptions.

Redemption Transaction Fee

Authorized Participants will be required to pay a fixed transaction fee ("Redemption Transaction Fee") of \$250 for each redemption order, which represents the maximum transaction fee.

Authorized Participants will also bear the costs of transferring the Deposit Securities from the Trust to their account or on their order.

Cash Creations and Redemptions

The Trust reserves the right to offer a "cash" option for creations or redemptions of all Series Shares. A cash creation would involve the delivery of cash in lieu of some or all Deposit Securities for such creation or redemption order. In each instance of such cash creations or redemptions, Authorized Participants placing creation or redemption orders will be responsible for Trust brokerage and other transaction costs associated with using cash to purchase or sell the requisite Deposit Securities. Authorized Participants will also be charged the Creation Transaction Fee or Redemption Transaction Fee. In all cases, such fees will be limited in accordance with the requirements of the SEC applicable to management investment companies offering redeemable securities.

CONTINUOUS OFFERING

The method by which Creation Units are created and traded may raise certain issues under applicable securities laws. Because new Creation Units are issued and sold by the Trust on an ongoing basis, at any point a "distribution," as such term is used in the Securities Act, may occur. Broker-dealers and other persons are cautioned that some activities on their part may, depending on the circumstances, result in their being deemed participants in a distribution in a manner which could render them statutory underwriters and subject them to the prospectus delivery and liability provisions of the Securities Act.

For example, a broker-dealer firm or its client may be deemed a statutory underwriter if it takes Creation Units after placing an order with the Distributor, breaks them down into constituent Shares, and sells such Shares directly to customers, or if it chooses to couple the creation of a supply of new Shares with an active selling effort involving solicitation of secondary market demand for Shares. A determination of whether one is an underwriter for purposes of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), must take into account all the facts and circumstances pertaining to the activities of the broker-dealer or its client in the particular case, and the examples mentioned above should not be considered a complete description of all the activities that could lead to a categorization as an underwriter.

Broker-dealers who are not "underwriters" but are participating in a distribution (as contrasted to ordinary secondary trading transactions), and thus dealing with Shares that are part of an "unsold allotment" within the meaning of Section 4(3)(C) of the Securities Act, would be unable to take advantage of the prospectus-delivery exemption provided by Section 4(3) of the Securities Act. This is because the prospectus delivery exemption in Section 4(3) of the Securities Act is not available in respect of such transactions as a result of Section 24(d) of the 1940 Act. As a result, broker-dealer firms should note that dealers who are not underwriters but are participating in a distribution (as contrasted with ordinary secondary market transactions) and thus dealing with the Shares that are part of an over-allotment within the meaning of Section 4(3)(A) of the Securities Act would be unable to take advantage of the prospectus delivery exemption provided by Section 4(3) of the Securities Act. Firms that incur a prospectus delivery obligation with respect to Shares are reminded that, under Rule 153 of the Securities Act, a prospectus delivery obligation under Section 5(b)(2) of the Securities Act owed to an exchange member in connection with a sale on the Exchange is satisfied by the fact that the prospectus is available at the Exchange upon request. The prospectus delivery mechanism provided in Rule 153 is only available with respect to transactions on an exchange.

DETERMINATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

The following information supplements and should be read in conjunction with the section in the Prospectus entitled "Determination of Net Asset Value (NAV)."

The NAV per Share for the Series is computed by dividing the value of the net assets of the Series (i.e., the value of its total assets less total liabilities) by the total number of Shares outstanding, rounded to the nearest cent. Expenses and fees, including the management fee, are accrued daily and taken into account for purposes of determining NAV. The NAV of the Series is determined as of the close of the regular trading session on the Exchange (ordinarily 4:00 p.m., Eastern Time) on each day that such exchange is open.

In computing the Series NAV, the Series portfolio securities are valued based on market quotations. When market quotations are not readily available for a portfolio security the Series must use such security's fair value as determined in good faith in accordance with the Series Pricing and Valuation Guidelines which are approved by the Board of Trustees.

Portfolio Securities are generally valued at the last quoted sale price or official closing price of the exchange on which they trade, which is deemed to be the principal market on which the securities are traded, or if there is no last quoted sale price or official closing price on the day of valuation, a security is valued at the mean of the bid and ask prices. The Currency Hedge Contract will be valued using the prevailing exchange rate of the relevant non-U.S. currency at the time that NAV is calculated. The exchange rate will be established by an independent pricing service approved by the Board.

If a portfolio security's market price is not readily available or does not otherwise accurately reflect the fair value of such security, the portfolio security will be valued by another method that the Valuation Designee (as defined below) believes will better reflect fair value in accordance with the Trust's valuation policies and procedures approved by the Board of Trustees. The Series may use fair value pricing in a variety of circumstances, including but not limited to, situations when the value of the Series portfolio security has been materially affected by events occurring after the close of the market on which such security is principally traded (such as a corporate action or other news that may materially affect the price of such security) or trading in such security has been suspended or halted. Accordingly, the Series NAV may reflect certain portfolio securities' fair values rather than their market prices.

Investments for which market quotations are not readily available are valued at fair value as determined in good faith pursuant to Rule 2a-5 under the 1940 Act. As a general principle, the fair value of a security or other asset is the price that would be received upon the sale of the security or asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and time. Pursuant to Rule 2a-5, the Board has designated the Manager as the valuation designee ("Valuation Designee") for the Series to perform fair value determinations relating to all Series investments. The Manager may carry out its designated responsibilities as Valuation Designee through a fair valuation committee and may apply fair valuation methodologies approved by the Board, or utilize prices or inputs from pricing services, quotation reporting systems, valuation agents and other third-party sources that have been approved by the Board.

Fair value pricing involves subjective judgments and it is possible that a fair value determination for a portfolio security is materially different than the value that could be realized upon the sale of such security.

DISTRIBUTIONS

The Series typically earn income from ADR dividends, payments on the Currency Hedge Contract, fees from the sale of Portfolio Securities. All such income will be deposited into the account used to settle the Currency Hedge Contract ("Settlement Account"). Each Shareholder will be allocated yearly its pro rata share of any income, gain, losses and deductions of the Series as if the Shareholder directly owned its pro rata share of the Series assets. Such income generally will be taxable to a Shareholder regardless of whether it receives any cash distributions from the Series or cash distributions that differ in amount from such income. The Series taxable income will generally consist of ordinary income, capital gains or some combination of both. To the extent a Series has assets in its Settlement Account in excess of 2% of the Series total assets on any quarterly distribution determination date, such Series will distribute such excess pro rata to its Shareholders. Such quarterly distribution determination date shall be on the last day of each calendar quarter (subject to the next business day in the case of a holiday or weekend) with payment occurring, if a payment is due, the next business day. Regarding the sale of Portfolio Securities, Portfolio Securities may be sold in such amounts only to cover then existing Series expenses and cash redemptions of Shares, which such expenses shall be immediately paid after the sale of such Portfolio Securities.

U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAXES

The following discussion of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences generally applies to the purchase, ownership and disposition of Shares by a "U.S. Shareholder" (as defined below). The discussion below is based on the Code, Treasury Regulations promulgated under the Code and judicial and administrative interpretations of the Code, all as in effect on the date of this SAI. No assurance can be given that future legislation, regulations, court decisions and/or administrative pronouncements will not significantly change applicable law and materially affect the conclusions expressed herein, and any such change, even though made after a U.S. Shareholder has invested in a Series, could be applied retroactively.

The tax treatment of Shareholders may vary depending upon their own particular circumstances. Certain Shareholders, including banks, thrift institutions, certain other financial institutions, insurance companies, tax-exempt organizations, brokers and dealers in securities or currencies, certain securities traders, Shareholders holding Shares as a position in a "hedging," "straddle," "conversion" or "constructive sale" transaction (as those terms are defined in the authorities mentioned above), qualified pension and profit-sharing plans, individual retirement accounts, certain other tax-deferred accounts, U.S. expatriates, Shareholders whose "functional currency" is not the U.S. dollar, Shareholders subject to the U.S. federal alternative minimum tax, non-U.S. Shareholders and other Shareholders with special circumstances, may be subject to special rules not discussed below. In addition, the following discussion applies only to U.S. Shareholders who hold Shares as "capital assets.". This discussion does not purport to be complete or to address all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation that may be relevant to a Shareholder in light of its particular circumstances. Moreover, the discussion below does not address the effect of any U.S. state, local or foreign tax law on any Shareholder. Shareholders are urged to consult their own tax advisors with respect to all U.S. federal, state, local and foreign tax law considerations potentially applicable to their investment in Shares.

For purposes of this discussion, a "U.S. Shareholder" is a beneficial owner of Shares that is:

- An individual who is treated as a citizen or resident of the United States for U.S. federal income tax purposes;
- A corporation or other entity treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes that is created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state thereof or the District of Columbia;
- An estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of its source; or
- A trust, if a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over the administration of the trust and one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, the treatment of any partner in a partnership, including any entity treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, will generally depend upon the status of the partner and upon the activities of the partnership. Partnerships and partners in partnerships are urged to consult their own tax advisors about the U.S. federal income tax consequences of purchasing, owning and disposing of Shares.

The Series have not requested and will not request an advance ruling from the U.S. Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") as to the U.S. federal income tax matters described below. There is no assurance that the IRS will agree with the conclusions set forth in this section. The IRS could adopt positions contrary to those discussed below and such positions could be sustained. Prospective investors should consult their own tax advisors with regard to the U.S. federal tax consequences of the purchase, ownership and disposition of Shares, as well as the tax consequences arising under the laws of any U.S. state, foreign country or other taxing jurisdiction.

Tax Treatment of the Series

Each Series intends to qualify as a "grantor trust" for U.S. federal income tax purposes. There can be no assurance that the IRS will agree with this treatment, and it is possible that the IRS or another tax authority could assert a position contrary thereto and that a court could sustain that contrary position. As a "grantor trust" for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the Series will not pay U.S. federal income tax. Instead, the income and expenses of a Series will be allocated on a pro rata basis to Shareholders, and a Series will report its income, gains, losses and deductions to the IRS and Shareholders on that basis.

If a Series fails to qualify as a grantor trust for any year (subject to any available curative measures), the Series likely will be subject to regular corporate level U.S. federal income tax in that year on all of its taxable income, regardless of whether the Series makes any distributions to its Shareholders. In addition, distributions would be taxable to Shareholders generally as ordinary dividends to the extent of the Series current and accumulated earnings and profits.

The grantor trust structure of each Series is intended to be treated as a widely held fixed investment trust ("WHFIT"), and should be subject to what is commonly referred to as the WHFIT Treasury Regulations. A WHFIT must satisfy certain detailed reporting requirements. Trustees of fixed investment trusts frequently do not know the identities of the beneficial owners of the trust interests and are unable to communicate tax information directly to them because trust interests often are held in street name, i.e., in the name of a middleman. The WHFIT Treasury Regulations provide rules that specifically require the sharing of tax information among trustees, middlemen, and beneficial owners of fixed investment trusts that meet the definition of a WHFIT. Each Series expects that it will exceed the yearly threshold for simplified WHFIT tax reporting. Therefore, each Series intends to provide the necessary information to middlemen so that they can provide yearly complex WHFIT tax reporting to U.S. shareholders. Prospective U.S. shareholders should understand that computing taxable income from a WHFIT investment may be different and more complicated than such computations for other investment types. Prospective U.S. shareholders should consult their own tax advisors to better understand how complex WHFIT reporting will affect the completion their own tax returns.

Taxation of U.S. Shareholders

U.S. Shareholders generally will be treated, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, as if they directly own a pro rata share of the underlying assets held in the Series. U.S. Shareholders also will be treated as if they directly received their respective pro rata shares of a Series income, if any, regardless of whether they receive any distributions from the Series. U.S. Shareholders will also be treated as if they directly incurred their respective pro rata shares of the Series expenses. The income from Series assets that is reportable by a U.S. Shareholder is not reduced by amounts used to pay expenses of the Series. Instead, a U.S. Shareholder may deduct its respective pro rata share of each expense incurred by the Series to the same extent as if it directly incurred such expense. U.S. Shareholders that are individuals, estates or trusts, however, may be required to treat some or all of the expenses of the Series as miscellaneous itemized deductions. An individual U.S. Shareholder may not deduct miscellaneous itemized deductions for tax years beginning after December 31, 2017, and before January 1, 2026. For tax years beginning after December 31, 2025, an individual U.S. Shareholder may deduct certain miscellaneous itemized deductions only to the extent they exceed 2% of adjusted gross income. In addition, such deductions may be subject to phase-outs and other limitations under applicable provisions of the Code and Treasury Regulations and, if the U.S. Shareholder is an individual subject to the alternative minimum tax, may not be deductible at all. Generally, any cash distributed by a Series to a U.S. Shareholder is the net of cash income and expenses reported. There may be circumstances under which a U.S. Shareholder is required to recognize income for a taxable year with respect to the Series even if it does not receive a corresponding distribution from the Series.

In the case of a U.S. Shareholder that purchases Shares for cash, its initial tax basis in its pro rata share of the assets held by the Series at the time Shares are acquired will be equal to its cost of acquiring the Shares. In the case of a U.S. Shareholder that acquires its Shares by delivering Portfolio Securities and any cash to the Series, the delivery of the Portfolio Securities and any cash in exchange for the underlying assets represented by the Shares will not be a taxable event to the U.S. Shareholder, and the U.S. Shareholder's tax basis and holding period for the U.S. Shareholder's pro rata share of the assets held in the Series will be the same as its tax basis and holding period for the Portfolio Securities and any cash delivered by the U.S. Shareholder in exchange therefor.

When the Series sells Portfolio Securities, for example to pay expenses, a U.S. Shareholder generally will recognize gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between (i) the U.S. Shareholder's pro rata share of the amount realized by the Series upon the sale; and (ii) the U.S. Shareholder's tax basis in its pro rata share of the Portfolio Securities that were sold, which gain or loss will generally be long-term or short-term capital gain or loss, depending upon whether the U.S. Shareholder has held its Shares for more than one year. A U.S. Shareholder's tax basis in any Portfolio Securities sold by the Series generally will be determined by multiplying the U.S. Shareholder's total basis for its share of all of the Portfolio Securities held in the Series immediately prior to the sale, by a fraction the numerator of which is the amount of Portfolio Securities sold and the denominator of which is the total amount of the Portfolio Securities held in the Series immediately prior to the sale. Immediately after any such sale, a U.S. Shareholder's tax basis in its pro rata share of the Portfolio Securities remaining in the Series will equal its tax basis in its share of the total amount of the Portfolio Securities held in the Series immediately prior to the sale, less the portion of such basis allocable to its share of the Portfolio Securities that were sold.

On a sale or other disposition of Shares, a U.S. Shareholder generally will recognize gain or loss in an amount equal to the

difference between (i) the amount realized on the sale of the Shares and (ii) the portion of its tax basis in its pro rata share of the Series assets that is attributable to the Shares disposed of, determined by multiplying the tax basis of its pro rata share of all of the assets held by the Series immediately prior to such sale or other disposition by a fraction the numerator of which is the number of Shares disposed of and the denominator of which is the total number of Shares it held immediately prior to such sale or other disposition. That gain or loss will generally be short-term capital gain or loss if the Shares were held for one year or less and long-term capital gain or loss if the Shares were held for more than one year. After any sale of fewer than all of U.S. Shareholder's Shares, its tax basis in its pro rata share of the Series assets immediately after the sale of Shares generally will equal the tax basis in its pro rata share of the total amount of the assets of the Series immediately prior to the sale, less the portion of that tax basis that is taken into account in determining the amount of gain or loss recognized by the U.S. Shareholder upon the sale or other disposition.

When a Series sells Series assets, for example to pay expenses, a U.S. Shareholder generally will recognize gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between (i) the U.S. Shareholder's pro rata share of the amount realized by the Series upon the sale and (ii) its tax basis for its pro rata share of the Series assets that were sold, which gain or loss will generally be long-term or short-term capital gain or loss, depending upon whether the U.S. Shareholder is treated as having held its share of the Series assets that were sold for more than one year. A U.S. Shareholder's tax basis for its share of Series assets sold by the Series generally will be determined by multiplying the U.S. Shareholder's total basis for its share of all of the assets held by the Series immediately prior to the sale by a fraction, the numerator of which is the amount of Series assets sold and the denominator of which is the total amount of assets held in the Series immediately prior to the sale. After any such sale, a U.S. Shareholder's tax basis for its pro rata share of the Series remaining assets will be equal to its tax basis for its share of the total amount of the assets held in the Series immediately prior to the sale, less the portion of such basis allocable to its share of the Series assets that were sold.

A redemption of some or all of a U.S. Shareholder's Shares in exchange for the underlying assets represented by the Shares redeemed generally will not be a taxable event to the U.S. Shareholder. The U.S. Shareholder's tax basis in the assets received in the redemption generally will be the same as the U.S. Shareholder's tax basis in the portion of its pro rata share of the assets held in the Series immediately prior to the redemption that is attributable to the Shares redeemed. This is determined by multiplying the U.S. Shareholder's tax basis in its pro rata share of the assets held in the Series immediately prior to the redemption by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of Shares redeemed and the denominator of which is the number of Shares held by the U.S. Shareholder immediately prior to the redemption. The U.S. Shareholder's holding period with respect to the assets received should include the period during which the U.S. Shareholder held the Shares redeemed. A subsequent sale of the Portfolio Securities received by the U.S. Shareholder will be a taxable event.

Immediately after any sale or redemption of less than all of a U.S. Shareholder's Shares, the U.S. Shareholder's tax basis in its pro rata share of the assets held in the Series immediately after such sale or redemption generally will equal its tax basis for its share of the total amount of the assets held in the Series immediately prior to the sale or redemption, reduced by the portion of such basis that is attributable to the Shares sold or redeemed, as addressed above. The foregoing discussion assumes that all of a U.S. Shareholder's Shares were acquired on the same date and at the same price per Share. If a U.S. Shareholder owns multiple lots of Shares (i.e., Shares acquired on different dates and/or at different prices), it is uncertain whether the U.S. Shareholder may use the "specific identification" rules that apply under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1012-1(c) with respect to sales of stock, in determining the amount, and the long-term or short-term character, of any gain or loss recognized by the U.S. Shareholder upon the sale of Portfolio Securities held by the Trust, upon the sale of any Shares by the U.S. Shareholder, or upon the sale by the U.S. Shareholder of any Portfolio Securities received by it upon the redemption of any of its Shares. The IRS could take the position that a U.S. Shareholder has a blended tax basis and holding period for its pro rata share of the underlying assets in the Series. However, there is no tax guidance on this point. U.S. Shareholders that hold multiple lots of Shares, or that are contemplating acquiring multiple lots of Shares, should consult their own tax advisors as to the determination of the tax basis and holding period for the underlying assets related to such Shares.

The Series are expected to hold the Portfolio Securities, the Currency Hedge Contract and the Settlement Account. It is possible that the Series will hold other assets and realize income different from those described in this section, in which case a U.S. Shareholder will have U.S. federal income tax consequences different from or in addition to those described in this section.

The Currency Hedge Contract is likely to be classified as a "Section 988 transaction" because it is a type of financial instrument in which the amount of the payout is determined by reference to the value of one or more "nonfunctional currencies." The Series have not received nor requested any written guidance from the IRS regarding the tax classification of the Currency Hedge Contract as a "Section 988 transaction."

Generally, gain or loss attributable to a Section 988 transaction is ordinary income or loss rather than capital gain or loss and is sourced to the country of residence of the taxpayer. There are, however, complex rules that may enable a U.S. Shareholder to elect to treat any such foreign currency gain or loss attributable to the Currency Hedge Contract as capital gain or loss. Note there is very limited guidance with respect to the application of the Section 988 rules to a "grantor trust," such as the Series, and there is no assurance that the

IRS would respect an election made by a U.S. Shareholder (as opposed to an election by a Series) to treat any foreign currency gain or loss as capital gain or loss. The IRS, however, has historically taken and continues to take the position that a "grantor trust," such as the Series, for most purposes is treated as inseparable from its owner or owners for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Accordingly, because a U.S. Shareholder is deemed for U.S. federal income tax purposes to be a proportionate owner of the Currency Hedge Contract, it may be entitled to make an election to treat any income or loss from the Currency Hedge Contract as capital gain or loss. There are very specific requirements that must be met to satisfy the capital gain or loss election described above including concurrent identification requirements under applicable Treasury Regulations. U.S. Shareholders are strongly urged to consult their own tax advisors prior to investing in a Series to determine whether they can satisfy the election requirements, to take the necessary steps to make timely elections, and to understand the tax consequences of the income or loss attributable to the Currency Hedge Contract. Note that the Series will not make an election to treat any foreign currency gain or loss as capital gain or loss.

Dividends received by the Series will be taxed to an individual U.S. Shareholder at the same U.S. federal income tax rates that apply to long-term capital gains, provided the dividends are qualifying dividends and certain holding period requirements are satisfied. Dividends that do not meet these requirements are generally taxed at ordinary income rates. Gains recognized by non-corporate U.S. Shareholders from a Series sale of Portfolio Securities treated as held for more than one year by the U.S. Shareholder are taxed at the maximum rate applicable to long-term capital gains.

Certain non-corporate U.S. Shareholders are required to pay a 3.8% tax on the lesser of the excess of their modified adjusted gross income over a threshold amount or their "net investment income," which generally includes dividends, interest, and net gains from the disposition of investment property. This tax is in addition to any regular U.S. federal income taxes due on such investment income. U.S. Shareholders are urged to consult their own tax advisors regarding the effect this law may have on an investment in the Shares.

A corporate U.S. Shareholder generally will not be entitled to the dividends-received deduction with respect to any dividends received by a Series, because the dividends-received deduction is generally not available for dividends received from most foreign corporations.

Under the "wash sale" rules, a U.S. Shareholder may not be able to deduct a loss on the Series disposition of Portfolio Securities. As a result, it may be required to recognize income greater than the total cash actually received from the Series during the taxable year.

U.S. Shareholders will be required to recognize gain or loss upon a sale of Series assets (as discussed above), even though some or all of the proceeds of such sale are used to pay Series expenses. Generally, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, a U.S. Shareholder must take into account its full pro rata share of the Series income, even if some of that income is used to pay Series expenses.

Any brokerage or other transaction fees incurred by a U.S. Shareholder in purchasing Shares will be treated as part of its tax basis in the underlying assets of a Series. Similarly, any brokerage fee incurred by a U.S. Shareholder in selling Shares will reduce the amount realized by it with respect to the sale.

The Series will file certain information returns with the IRS, and provide certain tax-related information to Shareholders, in connection with the Series. The Series will make information available that will enable brokers and custodians through which Shareholders hold Shares to prepare and, if required, to file certain information returns (e.g., Form 1099) with the IRS. To the extent required by applicable Treasury Regulations, each Shareholder will be provided with information regarding its allocable portion of the Series annual income, expenses, gains and losses (if any). A U.S. Shareholder may be subject to U.S. backup withholding tax in certain circumstances unless it provides its taxpayer identification number and complies with certain certification procedures. The amount of any backup withholding will be allowed as a credit against a U.S. Shareholder's U.S. federal income tax liability and may entitle it to a refund, provided that the required information is furnished to the IRS.

This discussion of "U.S. Federal Income Taxes" is for general information only and is not tax advice. All investors should consult their own tax advisers as to the U.S. federal, state, local and foreign tax provisions applicable to them.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KPMG LLP, located at 191 West Nationwide Blvd., Suite 500, Columbus, Ohio 43215, serves as independent registered public accounting firm to the Trust and will perform the annual audit of the financial statements of the Series. The Series are newly organized and as of the date of this SAI had no operations.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Series are not sponsored, endorsed, sold or promoted by the Exchange. The Exchange makes no representation or warranty, express or implied, to the owners of Shares or any member of the public regarding the advisability of investing in securities generally or in the Series particularly or the ability of the Series to achieve their objective. The Exchange has no obligation or liability in connection with

the administration, marketing or trading of the Series.

For purposes of the 1940 Act, the Series are registered investment companies, and the acquisition of Shares by other registered investment companies and companies relying on exemption from registration as investment companies under Section 3(c)(1) or 3(c)(7) of the 1940 Act is subject to the restrictions of Section 12(d)(1) of the 1940 Act, except as permitted by an exemptive order that permits registered investment companies to invest in the Series beyond those limitations.

Shareholder inquiries may be made by writing to the Trust at 8730 Stony Point Parkway, Suite 205, Richmond, Virginia 23235.

EXHIBIT A

Precidian ETFs Trust

PROXY VOTING POLICY AND PROCEDURES

The Precidian ETFs Trust (the "Trust") is registered as an open-end management investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended ("1940 Act"). The Trust offers multiple series ("Series"). Consistent with its fiduciary duties and pursuant to Rule 30b1-4 under the 1940 Act (the "Proxy Rule"), the Board of Trustees of the Trust (the "Board") has adopted this proxy voting policy on behalf of the Trust (the "Policy") to reflect its commitment to ensure that proxies are voted in a manner consistent with the best interests of the Series' shareholders.

Delegation of Proxy Voting Authority to Fund Advisers

The Board believes that the investment adviser of the Trust (the "Manager"), as the entity that selects the individual securities that comprise each Series' portfolio, is the most knowledgeable and best suited to make decisions on how to vote proxies of portfolio companies held by that Series. The Trust shall therefore defer to, and rely on, the Manager to make decisions on how to cast proxy votes on behalf of such Series.

The Trust hereby designates the Manager of the Trust as the entity responsible for exercising proxy voting authority with regard to securities held in each Series' investment portfolio. Consistent with its duties under this Policy, the Manager shall monitor and review corporate transactions of corporations in which a Series has invested, obtain all information sufficient to allow an informed vote on all proxy solicitations, ensure that all proxy votes are cast in a timely fashion, and maintain all records required to be maintained by the Series under the Proxy Rule and the 1940 Act. The Manager shall perform these duties in accordance with the Manager's proxy voting policy, a copy of which shall be presented to this Board for its review. The Manager shall promptly provide the Board updates to its proxy voting policy as they are adopted and implemented.

Conflict of Interest Transactions

In some instances, the Manager may be asked to cast a proxy vote that presents a conflict between the interests of a Series' shareholders, and those of the Manager or an affiliated person of the Manager. In such case, the Manager is instructed to abstain from making a voting decision and to forward all necessary proxy voting materials to the Trust to enable the Board to make a voting decision. When the Board is required to make a proxy voting decision, only the Trustees without a conflict of interest with regard to the security in question or the matter to be voted upon shall be permitted to participate in the decision of how a Series' vote will be cast. In the event that the Board is required to vote a proxy because the Manager has a conflict of interest with respect to the proxy, the Board will vote such proxy in accordance with the Manager's proxy voting policy, to the extent consistent with the shareholders' best interests, as determined by the Board in its discretion. The Board shall notify the Manager of its final decision on the matter and the Manager shall vote in accordance with the Board's decision.

Availability of Proxy Voting Policy and Records Available to Fund Shareholders

If the Trust or each Series has a website, the Trust or Series may post a copy of the Manager's proxy voting policy and the Trust's Policy on such website. Effective July 1, 2024, each Series is required to post to its website, either each Series' proxy voting record for the most recent reporting period, or a link to the Edgar filing of the report. In addition, a copy of such policies and of each Series' proxy voting record shall also be made available, without charge, upon request of any shareholder of a Series, by calling the Trust's toll-free telephone number as printed in the Series' prospectus. The Trust's administrator shall reply to any Series shareholder request within three business days of receipt of the request, by first-class mail or other means designed to ensure equally prompt delivery.

The Manager shall provide a complete voting record, as required by the Proxy Rule, for each Series of the Trust, to the Trust's administrator within 30 days following the end of each 12-month period ending June 30. The Trust's administrator will file a report based on such record on Form N-PX on an annual basis with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than August 31st of each year.

EXHIBIT B

PRECIDIAN FUNDS

PROXY VOTING POLICY AND PROCEDURES

Precidian Funds LLC (the "Adviser") shall vote proxies related to securities held in our clients' portfolios in the best interest of our clients. All references in these Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures are limited solely to clients for which we have agreed to vote such proxies. A client may reserve to itself the right to vote proxies.

The Adviser's authority to vote the proxies of certain clients is established by advisory contracts or comparable documents.

The Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the "Advisers Act"), requires us to act solely in the best interest of our clients at all times. We have adopted and implemented these Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures which we believe are reasonably designed to ensure that proxies are voted in the best interest of clients, in accordance with our fiduciary duties and Rule 206(4)-6 under the Advisers Act.

Reflecting a basic investment philosophy that good management is shareholder focused, proxy votes will generally be cast in support of management on routine corporate matters and in support of any management proposal that is plainly in the interest of all shareholders. Specifically, proxy votes generally will be cast in favor of proposals that:

- maintain or strengthen the shared interests of stockholders and management;
- increase shareholder value; and
- maintain or increase shareholder rights generally.

Proxy votes will generally be cast against proposals having the opposite effect of the above interests. Where we perceive that a management proposal, if approved, would tend to limit or reduce the market value of the company's securities, we will generally vote against it. We believe that means for ensuring management accountability to shareholders, in the rare cases where the means are threatened, must not be compromised.

We generally support shareholder rights and recapitalization measures undertaken unilaterally by boards of directors properly exercising their responsibilities and authority, unless such measures could have the effect of reducing shareholder rights or potential shareholder value. In cases where shareholder proposals challenge such actions, our voting position will generally favor not interfering with the directors' proper function in the interest of all shareholders.

We believe that proposals addressing strictly social or political issues are not relevant to the goal of maximizing the return on funds under our management. We will generally vote against such proposals but will consider supporting proposals that seek to protect shareholder rights or minimize risks to shareholder value.

We may delegate our responsibilities under these Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures to a third party, provided that we retain final authority and fiduciary responsibility for proxy voting. If we delegate our responsibilities, we shall monitor the delegate's compliance with these Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures.

We have contracted with a third-party proxy firm ("Proxy Advisory Firm") to provide such proxy voting support. Under the terms of our arrangement with Proxy Advisory Firm, we inform Proxy Advisory Firm, in advance, as to how we intend for certain issues to be voted. Proxy Advisory Firm has categorized common proxy voting issues and we can instruct Proxy Advisory Firm to vote either for or against a particular type of proposal or we can instruct Proxy Advisory Firm to seek specific instruction from us with respect to that particular type of proposal on a case-by-case basis ("Voting Instructions"). We have carefully considered each of the categories of issues presented by Proxy Advisory Firm and have determined which issues we will generally support, which we will generally oppose and which we will vote on a case by case basis after careful evaluation of the issue(s) presented. A basic discussion of our proxy voting philosophies is incorporated into these Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures. We will review our standing Voting Instructions annually. We may alter our standing Voting Instructions at any time and, from time to time, Proxy Advisory Firm may ask us to provide Voting Instructions for additional categories of proxy issues.

Votes will be cast by Proxy Advisory Firm in a timely fashion. Proxy Advisory Firm receives all proxy statements, sorts the proposals according to their categories and votes the proxies according to our Voting Instructions. Proposals for which a voting decision has been predetermined are automatically voted by Proxy Advisory Firm pursuant to the Voting Instructions. We inform Proxy Advisory Firm as to how other proposals are to be voted through Proxy Advisory Firm's website.

To the extent that a proxy contains a "case-by-case" issue which will not be voted by Proxy Advisory Firm according to our pre-determined Voting Instructions, we review the proxy to assess the extent, if any, to which there may be a material conflict between the interests of our clients on the one hand and our interests (including those of our affiliates, directors, officers, employees and other similar persons) on the other hand (a "potential conflict"). We perform this assessment on a proposal-by-proposal basis, and a potential conflict with respect to one proposal in a proxy shall not indicate that a potential conflict exists with respect to any other proposal in such proxy. If we determine that a potential conflict may exist, it shall be reported to our Proxy Voting Committee. The Proxy Voting Committee shall determine whether a potential conflict exists and is authorized to resolve any such conflict in a manner that is in the collective best interests of our clients (excluding any client that may have a potential conflict). Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Proxy Voting Committee may resolve a potential conflict in any of the following manners:

- We may disclose the potential conflict to our clients and obtain the consent of each of our clients before voting such securities pro-rata in accordance with the interests of our clients; or
- We may engage an independent third-party to determine how the proxy should be voted.

We will use commercially reasonable efforts to determine whether a potential conflict may exist, and a potential conflict shall be deemed to exist if and only if one or more of our senior portfolio managers actually knew or reasonably should have known of the potential conflict.

We may abstain from voting a client proxy if we conclude that the effect on shareholders' economic interests or the value of the portfolio holding is indeterminable or insignificant.

We may abstain from voting a client proxy for cost reasons (e.g, costs associated with voting proxies of non-U.S. securities). In accordance with our fiduciary duties, we will weigh the costs and benefits of voting proxy proposals and make an informed decision with respect to whether voting a given proxy proposal is prudent. Our decision takes into account the effect that the vote of our clients, either by itself or together with other votes, is expected to have on the value of our client's investment and whether this expected effect would outweigh the cost of voting. In such circumstances, evidence of such

determination will be documented and retained.

To the extent a mutual fund or ETF client invests in shares of other investment companies in accordance with the requirements under Rule 12d1-4 and the safe harbor provisions of Section 12(d)(1)(F) of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, the Adviser will vote proxies with respect to such investment company securities in the same proportion as the vote of all other holders of such securities.

Unless otherwise directed by a client in writing, we are responsible for voting all proxies related to securities that we manage for clients with respect to which we have accepted proxy voting responsibility in writing. A client may from time to time direct us in writing to vote proxies in a manner that is different from the guidelines set forth in these Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures. We will follow such written direction for proxies received after our receipt of such written direction.

We shall maintain certain records required by applicable law in connection with proxy voting activities and shall provide proxy voting information to a client for which we are responsible for voting proxies upon written request. We shall keep the following records in an easily accessible place for a period of at least five years, the first two years in our offices:

- Our Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures;
- Proxy statements received for client securities (we may rely on filings made on the Securities and Exchange Commission's EDGAR system to maintain this record);
- Records of each vote cast on behalf of clients;
- Records of written client requests for proxy voting information and any written responses by us to any client requests for such information; and
- Documents prepared by us that were material to making a proxy voting decision or that memorialized the basis for a voting decision.

Proxy votes on behalf of mutual funds and ETFs are disclosed annually on their respective Form N-PX. The most recently filed report on Form N-PX shall be posted on the website beginning the same day it files such information with the SEC. Clients should contact us in writing to obtain information about how we voted proxies with respect to their securities and to request a copy of our Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures at:

Precidian Funds LLC 301 S State Street, Suite N002 Newtown, PA 18940

Our Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures will be reviewed annually. The Proxy Voting Committee will review present procedures and past decisions with the aim of developing the most coherent and understandable proxy voting policy possible. We believe that a careful and continually evolving policy is indispensable to the task of discharging our fiduciary duties as an investment advisor.

These Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures may be amended at any time by the Adviser, provided that material changes that affect proxy voting for mutual fund or ETF clients shall be ratified by the Board of Trustees of such fund within four (4) months of adoption by the Adviser.

EXHIBIT C

NOMINATING AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE CHARTER

PRECIDIAN ETFs TRUST

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Membership

1. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of Precidian ETFs Trust (the "Trust") shall be composed entirely of Independent Trustees.

Board Nominations and Functions

- 1. The Committee shall make nominations for Trustee membership on the Board of Trustees, including the Independent Trustees. The Committee shall evaluate candidates' qualifications for Board membership and their independence from the investment advisers to the Trust's series portfolios and the Trust's other principal service providers. Persons selected as Independent Trustees must not be "interested person" as that term is defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, nor shall Independent Trustee have and affiliations or associations that shall preclude them from voting as an Independent Trustee on matters involving approvals and continuations of Rule 12b-1 Plans, Investment Advisory Agreements and such other standards as the Committee shall deem appropriate. The Committee shall also consider the effect of any relationships beyond those delineated in the 1940 Act that might impair independence, *e.g.*, business, financial or family relationships with managers or service providers. See Appendix A for Procedures with Respect to Nominees to the Board.
- 2. The Committee shall periodically review Board governance procedures and shall recommend any appropriate changes to the full Board of Trustees.
- 3. The Committee shall periodically review the composition of the Board of Trustees to determine whether it may be appropriate to add individuals with different backgrounds or skill sets from those already on the Board.
- 4. The Committee shall periodically review trustee compensation and shall recommend any appropriate changes to the Independent Trustees as a group.

Committee Nominations and Functions

- 1. The Committee shall make nominations for membership on all committees and shall review committee assignments at least annually.
- 2. The Committee shall review, as necessary, the responsibilities of any committees of the Board, whether there is a continuing need for each committee, whether there is a need for additional committees of the Board, and whether committees should be combined or reorganized. The Committee shall make recommendations for any such action to the full Board.

Other Powers and Responsibilities

- 1. The Committee shall have the resources and authority appropriate to discharge its responsibilities, including authority to retain special counsel and other experts or consultants at the expense of the Trust.
- 2. The Committee shall review this Charter periodically as needed and recommend any changes to the full Board of Trustees.

APPENDIX A TO THE NOMINATING AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE CHARTER

PRECIDIAN ETFS TRUST

PROCEDURES WITH RESPECT TO NOMINEES TO THE BOARD

- I. Identification of Candidates. When a vacancy on the Board of Trustees exists or is anticipated, and such vacancy is to be filled by an Independent Trustee, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee shall identify candidates by obtaining referrals from such sources as it may deem appropriate, which may include current Trustees, management of the Trust, counsel and other advisors to the Trustees, and shareholders of the Trust who submit recommendations in accordance with these procedures. In no event shall the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee consider as a candidate to fill any such vacancy an individual recommended by any investment adviser of any series portfolio of the Trust, unless the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has invited management to make such a recommendation.
- II. Shareholder Candidates. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee shall, when identifying candidates for the position of Independent Trustee, consider any such candidate recommended by a shareholder if such recommendation contains: (i) sufficient background information concerning the candidate, including evidence the candidate is willing to serve as an Independent Trustee if selected for the position; and (ii) is received in a sufficiently timely manner as determined by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee in its discretion. Shareholders shall be directed to address any such recommendations in writing to the attention of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, c/o the Secretary of the Trust. The Secretary shall retain copies of any shareholder recommendations which meet the foregoing requirements for a period of not more than 12 months following receipt. The Secretary shall have no obligation to acknowledge receipt of any shareholder recommendations.
- III. Evaluation of Candidates. In evaluating a candidate for a position on the Board of Trustees, including any candidate recommended by shareholders of the Trust, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee shall consider the following: (i) the candidate's knowledge in matters relating to the mutual fund industry; (ii) any experience possessed by the candidate as a director or senior officer of public companies; (iii) the candidate's educational background; (iv) the candidate's reputation for high ethical standards and professional integrity; (v) any specific financial, technical or other expertise possessed by the candidate, and the extent to which such expertise would complement the Board's existing mix of skills, core competencies and qualifications; (vi) the candidate's perceived ability to contribute to the ongoing functions of the Board, including the candidate's ability and commitment to attend meetings regularly and work collaboratively with other members of the Board; (vii) the candidate's ability to qualify as an Independent Trustee and any other actual or potential conflicts of interest involving the candidate and the Trust; and (viii) such other factors as the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee determines to be relevant in light of the existing composition of the Board and any anticipated vacancies. Prior to making a final recommendation to the Board, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee shall conduct personal interviews with those candidates it concludes are the most qualified candidates.